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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF GMR POCHANPALLI EXPRESSWAYS LIMITED
Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of GMR POCHANPALLI
EXPRESSWAYS LIMITED (the “Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2023, the
Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Changes in Equity
and the Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended on that date and notes to the standalone finarcial
statements including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information
(hereinafter referred to as the “standalone financial statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (the
“Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting
Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015, as amended, (“Ind AS") and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state
of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2023 and its profit, total comprehensive income, changes in equity
and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under sec:ion
143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (ICAI) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the
standalone financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder, and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAI's Code
of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provice a
basis for our opinion on the standalone financial statements.

Emphasis of Matters

We draw attention to Note no. 32 to the accompanying standalone financial statements with regard to non-
giving effect to the order of the Honourable High Court of Delhi dated April 06, 2022 by upholcing
Company’s contentions, with regard to applicability of overlay work only on increase in roughness index of
roads, pending finality. We are informed that the National Highways Authority of India (NHAI) has already
challenged the order in the appellate Court, in view of the matter being sub-judice and pending finality and
clarity, the Company has not given financial effect to the impact of the order.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of above matter.
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Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our
audit of the standalone financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed ir. the
context of our audit of the standalone financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon,

and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. We have determined the matters described
below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our report.

For each matter below, our description of how our audit addressed the matter is provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the
standalone financial statements section of our report, including in relation to these matters. Accordingly,
our audit included the performance of procedures designed to respond to our assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the standalone financial statements. The results of our audit procedures, including

the procedures performed to address the matters below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on the
accompanying standalone financial statements.

Provision for periodic major maintenance

» Provision for periodic major maintenance of project roads requires technical evaluations and critical
accounting estimates and judgments.

We have obtained an assurance over the appropriateness of management's assumptions and
methods applied in the calculating the provision for periodic major maintenance by carrying out the
following procedures, amongst others:

o Obtained the management's calculation of the provision for periodic major maintenance of
project roads which is made in accordance with technical evaluation and the Company's
policy and checked the assumptions made by the management and discussed with its
technical team.

o We have perused agreement entered between the parties concerned for major maintenance.

o We have also considered the appropriateness of the provision based on the Company's
historical experience by evaluating the managements' assumptions against provision for
periodic major maintenance of project roads with reference to historical track record.

a We have discussed with those in charged with governance and perused the legal opinior. on
the implications of the Order of Hon’ble High Court of Delhi on the carrying amoun: of
provision in the books and requirements of reversals if any.

° Performed discussion with those charged with governance with regard to the significant
management judgement that has been considered in assessing appropriateness and
adequacy of the provision made in books in this regard.

a Ensured appropriateness of the disclosures in the standalone financial statements in
accordance with the relevant requirements of Ind As.
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Information other than the standalone Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of other information. The other
information comprises the information included in Board’s Report including Annexures to Board’s Report,
but does not include the standalone financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon. The report
containing other information is expected to be made available to us after the date of this auditor's report.

Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and we will not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the Standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the Standalone financial statements or our knowledge obtained
in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. When we read the report containing other
information, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement therein, we are required to communi-zate
the matter to those charged with governance. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Management’s Responsibility for the Standalone Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with
respect to the preparation of these standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view of the
financial position, financial performance, total comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of
the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the
accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance
of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of
the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and applicaticn of
appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were opera:ing
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the standalone financial statement that give a true and fair view and are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the standalone financial statements, the management of the Company is responsible for
assessing the Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the management of the Company
either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do sc..

The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee thal an
audit conducted in accordance with Standard on Auditing (SAs) will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these standalone financial statements.
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As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

¢ Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain zudit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

* Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for
expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls with reference
to standalone financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

* Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by management.

* Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to
the related disclosures in the standalone financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a
going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements represent the underlying transactions
and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the standalone financial statements that, individually o- in
aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the
standalone financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative
factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii] to
evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the standalone financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relev_ant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.
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From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the standalone financial statements of the current period anc are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a
matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

-

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (‘the Order’) issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of Section 143 of the Act, we give in the ‘Annexure
A’, a statement on the matters specified in the paragraph 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent
applicable.

2 As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, based on our audit we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company
so far as it appears from our examination of those books;

c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive Income,
the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows dealt with by this
Report are in agreement with the relevant books of account;

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Incian
Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with the Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended;

e) The matters described in the Emphasis of Matters, in our opinion, may not have an adverse
effect on the functioning of the Company;

f) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2023
and taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on
March 31, 2023 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;

g) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to standalone
financial statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer
to our separate report in ‘Annexure B’;

h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
the requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended:

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us, the remuneration paid by the Company to its directors and manager during the year i in
accordance with the provisions of section 197 of the Act.;
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i) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with

Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended, in our opinion and
to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i. ~ The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position
to the extent quantifiable in its standalone financial statements - Refer Note No. 31
and 32 to the standalone financial statements;

ii. ~ The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts; for
which there were any material foreseeable losses. Refer Note No. 35 to the
standalone financial statements;

iii. ~There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

iv. a) Management has represented to us that, to the best of it's knowledge and belief,
(other than as disclosed in the notes to the accounts) no funds have been
advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium
or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other
persons or entities, including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermed:ary
shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities
identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultinate
Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the

Ultimate Beneficiaries;

b) Management has represented to us that, to the best of it's knowledge and be ief,
(other than as disclosed in the notes to the accounts) no funds have bzen
received by the Company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign
entities (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in
writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly,
lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever
by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

c) Based on our audit procedures conducted that are considered reasonable and
appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our attention that cause
us to believe that the representation given by the management as mentioned
above under paragraph (2)(i)(iv) (a) & (b) contain any material misstatement.
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V. The Company has neither declared nor paid any dividend during the year.
for CHATURVEDI & SHAH LLP
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration Number: 101720W / W100355

@-}?—’_\O\Afé’li_ﬂ:

Lalit R Mhalsekar
Partner
Membership Number: 103418

UDIN: 23103418BGXVHW1624

Place: Mumbai
Date: April 27, 2023
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In terms of the Annexure referred to in our report to the members of GMR POCHANPALLI EXPRESSWAYS

LIMITED (‘the Company’) on the standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023, we
report that:

ANNEXURE ‘A’ TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'’S REPORT

i) a) (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of property, plant and equipment (PPE).

(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible assels,

b) The Company has a regular program of physical verification of its Property Plant and
Equipment (PPE) by which PPE are verified every three years, in accordance with this program,
the PPE were verified during FY 2020-21 and no material discrepancies were noticed on such
verification. In our opinion, the periodicity of physical verification is reasonable having repard
to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets.

¢) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the company does not own any freehold immovable properties
(other than properties where the Company is the lessee and the lease agreements are duly
executed in favour of the lessee) and the Company does not have any lease/sublease deec on
leasehold land registered in the name of the company.

d) According to information and explanations given to us and books of accounts and records
examined by us, Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right
of Use assets) or intangible assets or both during the year

e) According to information, explanations and representation given to us by the management no
proceedings have been initiated or are pending against the Company for holding any benami
property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 and rules made thereunder-.

ii) a) According to the information and explanation given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records of the Company, in our opinion, physical verification of the inventories have been
conducted at reasonable intervals by the management having regard to the size and nature of
business of the Company and nature of its inventory, the coverage and procedures of such
verification by the management is appropriate. As explained to us and on the basis of the
records examined by us, the value of the discrepancies noticed on physical verification by
management did not exceed 10% or more in aggregate of each class of inventory.

b) According to the information and explanations given to us, at any point of time of the year, the
Company has not been sanctioned any working capital facility from banks or financial
institutions and hence reporting under Paragraph 3 (ii) (b) of the Order is not applicable.

iii) As per the information and explanation given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company has granted interest bearing unsecured loans to bodies
corporate. During the year the Company has not made investments in, provided any guarantee or
security to companies, firms, limited liability partnerships or any other parties other than unsecured
loan to bodies corporate as mentioned above.
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a) As per the information and explanation given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records of the Company, we state that the:

A)  Details ofloan granted to subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates:

Nature of parties | Aggregate amount of loans Balance outstanding as at balance
granted during the year sheet date in respect of loans granzed

Associates/Fellow Rs. Nil Rs.2,953.53 Lakhs
subsidiaries

As represented to us, the Company has not provided guarantees or security to
subsidiaries, joint ventures, and associates

B)  Details of loan granted to parties other than subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates:

Nature of parties | Aggregate amount of loans | Balance outstanding as at balance
granted during the year sheet date in respect of loans granted

Promoters Rs. 150 Lakhs Rs.23,960.48 Lakhs

As represented to us, the Company has not provided guarantees or security to parties
other than subsidiaries, joint ventures, and associates

b) In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us and on the basis of
our examination of the records of the Company, the terms and conditions on which the loans
had been granted were not, prima facie, prejudicial to the company’s interest. The Comp:iny,
during the year has not made any investments and provided guarantees or security to parties.

¢) In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us and on the basis of
our examination of the records of the Company, in respect of loans granted, the schedule of
repayment of principal and payment of interest has been stipulated in the original/renewal
agreements. In respect of repayment of the principal, in case of five parties, the principal
amount when it is due for payment has been not been paid and has been
renewed/extended/fresh loans granted to the same parties aggregating to Rs.26,914.01 Lalkhs
and interest accrued thereon of Rs. 10,119.39 Lakhs as on March 31, 2023 is pending recovery.

d) In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us and on the basis of
our examination of the records of the Company, there were no overdue amounts remaining
outstanding at the year end for more than ninety days.

e) Inour opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us and on the basis of
our examination of the records of the Company, the loans granted to bodies corporate has bien
renewed/extended/fresh loan granted to the same parties aggregating to Rs.26,914.01 Lakhs
and the percentage of the aggregate to the loans granted during the year is 100.00% with
interest accrued there on at the time of renewal was Rs. 9,689.80 Lakhs. The party-wise details
are given below:
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Name of the party Aggregate amount Percentage of the
of existing loans aggregate to the total
renewed or loans or advances in
extended or the nature of loans

settled by fresh granted during the year
loans (Rs. in

Lakhs)
GMR Highways Limited 11,809.92 43.88%
GMR Power and Urban Infra Limited 12,150.56 45.15%
GMR SEZ & Port Holdings Limited 2,510.00 9.33%
GMR Ambala Chandigarh Expressways 266.53 0.98%
Private Limited
Dhruvi Securities Private Limited 177.00 0.66%

f)  In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us and on the basis of
our examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not granted any loans either
repayable on demand or without specifying any terms or period of repayment, hence
requirement of paragraph 3 (iii) (f) is not applicable.

iv) In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has complied with the provisions of
Sections 185 of the Act in respect of grant of loans, providing guarantees and securities, as
applicable. Further, the Company is an infrastructure Company and accordingly section 186 of the
Act is not applicable.

V) In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, the Company has not
accepted any deposits and amounts which are deemed to be deposits within the meaning of Section
73 to 76 of the Act and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 (as amended). There
are no orders from Company Law Board or National Company Law Tribunal or Reserve Banl: of
India or any Court or any other Tribunal. Accordingly, the provision of paragraph 3(v) of the Order
is not applicable to the Company.

vi) We have broadly reviewed the books of account maintained by the company, pursuant to the Rules
made by the Central Government of India, the maintenance of cost records as prescribed under sub-
section (1) of section 148 of the Act and we are of the opinion that, prima facie, the prescribed
accounts and records have been made and maintained. We have not, however, made a detailed
examination of the records with a view to determine whether they are accurate or complete.
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a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, during the year the Company has generally been regular in
depositing the amounts deducted / accrued in the books of account in respect of undisputed
statutory dues including employee’s state insurance, provident fund, income-tax, goods and
service tax, cess and other material statutory dues as applicable to it with the appropriate
authorities.

There were no undisputed amounts payable in respect of provident fund, employees’ state
insurance, goods and service tax, cess and other material statutory dues in arrears as at March
31, 2023 for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable. Refer Note
no. 36 of the standalone financial statements for computation and payment of Minirmum
Alternate Tax (MAT) under Section 115]B of the Income Tax Act, 1961.

b) According to the information and explanation given to us and records of the Company, there are
no dues of income tax, goods and service tax or cess or other material statutory dues which
have not been deposited on account of any dispute except the following:

Nature of Nature of dues Years to Amount Forum where
Statute which it under dispute is

' pertains dispute pending
Income tax Disallowance of certain AY 2020-21 | Rs.132.61 CIT (Appeals)
Act, 1961 expenses and deductions, non- Lakhs Bangalore

grant of deduction under
section 80IA, section 80G and
non-grant of set off of brought
forward losses etc.

In our opinion and according to the information, explanations and representation given to us by the
management, there were no transactions relating to previously unrecorded income that were
surrendered or disclosed as income in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of
1961) during the year.

a) Inour opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us and on the basis of
our examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of
debentures to a financial institutions and banks. Further, the Company has not taken any loan
from banks and financial institutions or other parties during the year.

b) In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us and on the basis of
our examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not been declared wilful
defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or any government authority.

¢) The Company has not taken any term loan during the year and there are no unutilised term
loans at the beginning of the year and hence requirement of paragraph 3(ix)(c) of the Order is
not applicable to the Company.
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d) According to the information and explanations given to us, and the procedures performed by us,
and on an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, and on the basis of
our examination of the records of the Company, company has not raised any short term funds

during the year hence requirement of paragraph 3(ix)(d) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

"

e) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, we report that the Company has not taken any funds from any
entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of its subsidiaries, associates or joint

ventures hence requirement of paragraph 3(ix)(e) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

f)  According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the company, we report that the Company has not raised loans during the vear
on the pledge of securities held in its subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate companies hence
requirement of paragraph 3(ix)(f) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

x) a) Inour opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and on the bas:s of
our examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not raised money by way of
initial public offer or further public offer (including debt instruments) hence requirement of
paragraph 3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private
placement of shares or convertible debentures (fully, partially or optionally convertible) during
the year.

xi) a) Based on the audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting the true and fair view of
the financial statements and as per information and explanations given to us, no fraud by the
Company or on the Company has been noticed or reported during the year.

b) According to the information and explanations given to us, no report under sub-section 13 of
section 143 of the Act has been filed by auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under Rule 13 of
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government, during the year and
upto the date of this report.

¢) As represented to us by the management, there are no whistle blower complaints received by
the Company during the year.

Xii)  In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a
Nidhi Company. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xii)(a) to (c) of the Order is not applicable.

xiii)  In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and based on our
examination of the records of the Company, transactions with the related parties are in compliance
with sections 177 and 188 of the Act where applicable and details of such transactions have been
disclosed in the standalone financial statements as required by the applicable accounting standartls.
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Xiv)  a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and based on our

examination of the records of the Company, the Company has adequate internal audit system
commensurate with the size and nature of its business,

b) We have reviewed and considered the reports of the Internal Auditors for the period under
audit.

xv)  In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and based on our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not entered into any non-cash
transactions with directors or persons connected to its directors as referred to in Section 192 of the
Act.

xvi) a) To the best of our knowledge and as explained, the Company is not required to be registered
under Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.

b) In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations provided to us and on the
basis of our examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not conducted any
Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance activities during the year as per the Reserve bank of
India Act 1934.

c) Inour opinion, and according to the information and explanations provided to us, the Company
is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by the Reserve Bank
of India.

d) As represented by the management of the Company, the Group has two Core Investment
Company (CIC) as part of the Group as per the definition of Group contained in the Core
Investment Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016.

xvii)  In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations provided to us, Company has not
incurred any cash losses in the financial year and in the immediately preceding financial year.

xviii) There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. Accordingly, paragraph
3(xvii) of the Order is not applicable.

xix)  According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial ratios,
ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other
information accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and
management plans and based on our review of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing
has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the
date of the audit report that Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of
balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We,
however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further
state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give
any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the
balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

Contd... 7
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XX) a) In our opinion and as per the information and explanations received by us by the management
of the Company, the Company does not have any unspent amount in respect of other than
ongoing projects, which is required to be transferred to a Fund specified in Schedule VII to the
Companies Act within a period of six months of the expiry of the financial year in compliance
with second proviso to sub-section (5) of section 135 of the said Act.

b) In our opinion and as per the information and explanations received by us by the managerient
of the Company, the Company does not have any unspent amount in respect of ongoing projacts,
which is required to be transferred to special account in compliance with the provision of sub-
section (6) of section 135 of the said Act. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xx)(b) of the Order is not
applicable,

XXi)  In our opinion, Company is not required to prepare the consolidated financial statement under sub
section 3 of section 129 of the Act. Therefore, provisions of Paragraph 3 (xxi) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

for CHATURVEDI & SHAH LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number: 101720W / W100355

@f) )/\C'f‘/' (~eNe<o~

Lalit R Mhalsekar
Partner
Membership Number: 103418

UDIN: 23103418BGXVHW1624

Place: Mumbai
Date: April 27, 2023
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ANNEXURE B TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ol

Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to standalone financial statements under
Clause (i) of sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of GMR POCHANPALLI
EXPRESSWAYS LIMITED (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2023 in conjunction with our audit of the
standalone financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls
that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, inclucling
adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and
errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable
financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to
standalone financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Guidance Note and the Standards on Auditing, prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act,
2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls with reference to standalone
financial statements. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate
internal financial controls with reference to Standalone Financial Statements was established énd
maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system with reference to standalone financial statements and their operating
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements
included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial
statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and
operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on
the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the Standalcne
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for qur
audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system with reference to Standalone Financial
Statements.

Contd... 2
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to standalone financial statements

A company's internal financial control with reference to standalone financial statements is a process
designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of Standalone financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles. A company's internal financial control with reference to standalone financial
statements includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the
Company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of Standalone financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accour.ting
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with
authorizations of management and directors of the Company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance
regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the Company's
assets that could have a material effect on the Standalone financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to standalone financial
statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial
statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, matsrial
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of
the internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements to future periods are
subject to the risk that the internal financial control with reference to standalone financial statements may
become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or
procedures may deteriorate.,

Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the Company
has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial
statements and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at
March 31, 2023, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal
Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

for CHATURVEDI & SHAH LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number: 101720W / W100355

[0 b Agene

Lalit R Mhalsekar
Partner
Membership Number: 103418

UDIN: 23103418BGXVHW1624

Place: Mumbai
Date: April 27,2023
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GMR POCHANPALLI EXPRESSWAYS LIMITED!
CIN - U45200KA2005PLC049327

BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31, 2023 ¢

© Rupees in Lakhs

Particulars . Note . March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
ASSETS
Non-current Assets«
Property, plant and equipments P 65.87¢ 67.487
Other intangible assets , 3¢ 14,38« 12.37¢
Right of use Assets 4¢ -t 116.07 ©
Financial Assets «
Loans ¢ 5¢ 2,510.00 ¢ 2,510.001
Other financial assets , 6 ¢ 9,148.71¢ 8,855.05 °
Other non-current assets < 74 5,381.26¢ 3,323.84¢
Income tax assets (net) 81 139.10 ¢ 139.10¢
Total Non-Current Assets¢ 17,259.32 ¢ 15,023.91 ¢
Current Assets ¢
Inventories | 91 15.13¢ 39.71¢
Financial Assets
Cash and cash equivalents ¢ 10¢ 5,567.32 ¢ 4,122.47 ¢
Bank balances other than above ¢ 11r 2,433.97 1 1,941.50¢
Loans © 55 24,404.01 ¢ 24,595.47
Other financial assets 1 6f 14,316.87 ¢ 14,439.78 ¢
Other current assets: 7¢ 5,539.45 ¢ 7,879.47 7
Total Current Assets « 52,276.75 53,018.40 7
TOTAL ASSETS | 69,536.07 ¢ 68,042.31¢
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES ¢
EQUITY .
Equity share capital 12 ¢ 13,800.00¢ 13,800.00 ¢
Other equity 13 ¢ 16,053.08¢ 11,647.75¢
Total Equity 29,853.08+ 25,447.75 «
LIABILITIES -
Non-current Liabilities
Financial Liabilities
Borrowings 14, 17,899.03¢ 22,155.73 «
Lease Liabilities 15¢ - =l
Provisions 16« S5,777.98¢ 3,474.35
Other non-current liabilities 19+ 483.18+ 295.94 ¢
Deferred tax liabilities (net) : 20¢ - ¥ T
Total Non-current Liabilities ¢ F4,160.19 ~25,926.02°
Current Liabilities-
Financial Liabilities
Borrowings « 14 ¢ 4,556.40 « 4,325.79 ¢
Trade payables«
a) Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises. 17+ 144.08 « 156.03 ¢
b) Total outstanding dues of creditors other than (a) above 17°¢ 2,006.17 ¢ 1,845.051
Lease Liabilities 15¢ 275.23 ¢ 437.73¢
Other financial liabilities: 18, 836.32¢ 1,023.61¢
Other current liabilities 19 ¢ 1,376.30+ 600.64 «
Provisions 16¢ 5,101.21¢ 7,542.31¢
Current tax liabilities {net) « 20 ¢ 1,227.09' 737.381
Total Current Liabilities « 15,522.801 16,668.54
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES « 69,536.07 68,042.31 «
7 Significant accounting policies 1

. The accompanying notes form an integral part of the standalone financial statements.

As per our report of even date attached

For Chaturvedi & Shah LLP

Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration Number : 101720W / W100355

o dyence~—

¢ Lalit R Mhalsekar

« Partner
« Membership No.: 103418

¢ Date : April 27, 2023
' Place : Mumbai

- Place : New Delhi

¢ For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
+ GMR Pochanpalli Expressways Limited

« Arun Kumar Sharma
¢ Director
+ DIN: 02281905

Bajrang Lal Gupta
1 ABigector

A

Amit Kumar

« Chief Financial Officer
Membership no. 500164
Date : April 27, 2023

+ Company Secretary
‘Membership no. A18789




GMR POCHANPALLI EXPRESSWAYS LIMITED ¢
CIN - U45200KA2005PLC049327 §

STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31,2023 ¢

" Rupees in Lakhs
Particulars . Note March 31, 2023« March 31, 2022
INCOME .
Revenue from operations « 21¢ 5,777,381 6,305.:9 ©
Other income « 22¢ 8,521.09 r 4,069,657
Total Income 14,298.47 ¢ 10,375.64+«
EXPENSES ¢
Operating expenses ¢ 23r 1,664.25¢ 1,947.C1
Employee benefits expense 241 557.93¢ 687.62
Finance costs, 25¢ 4,232.31¢ 4,153.50
Depreciation and amortization expense « 26+ 136.43 ¢ 128.32
Other expenses © 27¢ 2,379.73¢ 1,487..8
Total Expenses ¢ 8,970.65 ¢ 8,403.43
Profit before tax 5,327.82¢ 1,972.,01
Tax Expense:
Current Tax ¢ 20¢ 93270 ¢ 343.81
Deferred tax « 20¢ - -

932.70¢ 343.81
Profit for the year ¢ 4,395.12 ¢ 1,628.20
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods: .
Re-measurement gains (losses) on defined benefit plans ¢ 10.21¢ (4.23)
Income tax effect « =2t =
Other comprehensive income/(expenses) for the year, net of tax ¢ 10.21¢ (4.23)
Total comprehensive income for the year< 4,405.33 1,623.97
Earnings per equity share: {face value of equity shares of Rs.10 each)r
Basic ¢ 28r 318" 113
Diluted ¢ 287 3.18r 113

Significant accounting policies « 1¢
The accompanying notes form an integral part of the standalone financial statements. ¢
As per our report of even date attached ¢ For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of *
For Chaturvedi & Shah LLP ¢ GMR Pochanpalli Expressways Limited ¢

Chartered Accountants <
Fim.Registration Number : 101720W / W100355 «

h o pepc o~ S ove—
Lalit R Mhalsekar « v ¢ ArunmKdmar Sharma o

Partner « ¢ Director
Membership No.: 103418 ¢ e « DIN: 02281905

-_—
5 Amit Kumar

¢ Chief Financial Officer
< Membership no. 500164

¢ Date : April 27, 2023
€ Place : New Delhi

Date : April 27, 2023 ¢
Place : Mumbai ¢

Bajrang Lal Gupla

—

¢ Director

¢ DIN; Q7175777

' Company Secretary
‘Membership no. A18789




GMR POCHANPALLI EXPRESSWAYS LIMITED
CIN - U45200KA2005PLC049327

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023 «

A. Equity Share Capital

¢ Rupees in Lakhs

Particulars Note ¢ March 31, 2023 ¢ March 31, 2022 ¢
Balance at the beginning of the year X 12 ¢ 13,800.00 (13,800.00
Changes in equity share capital during the year « 12 - < ( -
Balance at the end of the year « 12 c 13,800.007 713,800.00

B. Other Equity

1 Rupees in Lakhs
Particulars < Equity component Reserves and surplus | Total
offinancial  "Debenture redemption Retained earnings [Refer Note No.13]
instruments - reserve
preference shares

Changes in equity for the year ended March 31, 2022,

Balance as at April 1, 2021 ¢ 3,620.95 r 9,259.44 (2,856.61) ¢ 10,023.78 «
Profit for the year 1,628.20 ¢ 1,628.20 ¢
Other comprehensive income

Re-measurement gains/(loss) on defined benefit plans¢ (8.23)7 (4.23) ¢
Balance as at March 31, 2022 3,620.95 1 9,259.44 * (1,232.64) © 11,647.75 i
Changes in equity for the year ended March 31, 2023 ¢

Balance as at April 1, 2022 ¢ 3,620957 8,259.44 ¢ (1,232.64) ¢ 11,647.75 ¢
Profit for the year ¢ 4,395.12 ¢ 4,395.12 ¢
Other comprehensive incomes

Re-measurement gains/(loss) on defined benefit plans ¢ 10.21 7 10.21 ¢
Balance as at March 31, 2023 3,620.95 « 9,259.44 ¢ 3,172.69 * 16,053.08 «

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the standalone financial statements¢

As per our report of even date attached¢
For Chaturvedi & Shah LLP ¢ < For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Chartered Accountants < ¢ GMR Pochanpalli Expressways Limited
Firm Registration Number : 101720W / W100355 «

1’\0\/\ (/] Lo~ %dev_
Lalit R Mhalsekar ¢ Arun Kumar Sharma

Partner ¢ ¢ Director ©  Director
Membership No.: 103418 « - < DIN: 02281905 ¢ DIN: 75777

Burndd —

ajrang Lal Gupta

A
¢ Amit Kumar " Par S'lT'l'gh/‘
¢ Chief Financial Officer ¢ Company Secretary
<« Membership no. 500164 « Membership no. A18789

Date : April 27, 2023 +
Place : Mumbai

¢ Date : April 27, 2023
¢ Place : New Delhi




GMR POCHANPALLI EXPRESSWAYS LIMITED
CIN - U45200KA2005PLC049327
STATEMENT OF CASH FLQWS"=\WS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023

I Rupees in Lakhs
¢ March 31,2023 « March 31, 2022

Particulars ¢

A CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:

Profit before tax .

5,327.82¢ 1,972.01;
Adjustments For : ¢
Depreciation and amortisation « 136.43 ¢ 128,32 ¢
Interest and finance charges ¢ 4,232.31¢ 4,153.50¢
Major maintenance expensesr 1,872.42¢ 1,562.85¢
Profit on sale of property plant and equipment ¢ (3.78) « .
Profit on sale of Investment r -« (0.14)¢
Advances written off « 32,77 ¢ o
Reameasurements of defined benefit plans © 10.21¢ (4.23)
Interest income on bank deposit and others ¢ (3,606.58) « (3,250.15)¢
Reversal of modification loss on Loan to related parties ¢ 2 (366.95)r
Modification loss/(gain) on service concession asset ¢ (3,432.90) ¢ e
Modification gain on right of use assets r E (45.04)r
Fair value loss on financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss /provided for¢ 1,456.00 ¢ 817.01¢
Excess provision written back ¢ (1,471.54)« e
4,553.16¢ 4,967.18 ¢
Adjustments for Movement in Working Capital: ¢
Decrease / (increase) in financial assets ’e (227.86) 169.62 v
Decrease / (increase) in other current/non-current assets ¢ (388.27) ¢ 53.40 ¢
Decrease / (increase) in Inventories ¢ 24.58 ¢ (17.61)¢
Increase / (decrease) in trade payablest 175.36 ¢ (445.52) ¢
Increase / (decrease) in other current/non-current liabilities ¢ 1,020.91¢ ©(277.73)¢
Increase / (decrease) in Provision (1,060.77) ¢ (1,258.93)
Cash From/({used In) Operating activities ¢ 4,097.11 ¢ 3,190.41 ¢
Tax (paid)/refund v (442.99) ¢ (152.59) ¢
Net Cash From/(used In) Operating activities ¢ 3,654.12 « 3,037.82 ¢
B CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACT IVITIES:
Purchase of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets ¢ (20.76) © (49.01) ¢
Sale of property, plant and equipment ¢ 378 ¢ -
Decrease/(increase) in current Investments in mutual funds - F 34.11¢
Interest Income on bank deposit and others ( 644.09 ¢ 830.38¢
Decrease/(increase) in Loan to Related Parties ¢ 191.46 ¢ (542.93)¢
Decrease/(increase) in Other Bank Balance < (492.47) ¢ (1,206.52)¢
Annuity received (net of payment) under service concession agreement ¢ 4,193.38 ' 4,116.44 ¢
Cash From/(used In} Investing Activities 4,519.48 © 3,182.47 ¢
rocaeu g ot By rROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES: <
Repayment of debentures « (4,338.00) (4,784.00) «
Payment of Lease Liability « {169.90) [220.62) ¢
Interest and finance charges paid 2,220.85) [2,638.93)¢
Cash From/{used In) Financing Activities (6,728.75) (7,643.55) ¢
D NetiIncrease / decrease in Cash and Cash Equivalents [A+B+C] « 1,444.85 (1,423.26) «
Cash and Cash Equivalents as at beginning of the year « 4,122.47 5,545.73
Cash and Cash Equivalents as at end of the year« 5,567.32 ¢ 4,122.47




GMR POCHANPALLI EXPRESSWAYS LIMITED
CIN - U45200KA2005PLC049327 ¢

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31,2023 ¢
™ Rupees in Lakhs
Particulars,- © March 31,2023 | March 31, 2022

Components of Cash and Cash Equivalents: ¢
Cash in hand ¢ 032¢ -
Balances with banks ©
- Current account © 975.75 ¢ 39236 ¢
- Fixed deposits * 4,591.25 1 3,730.11 ¢

Total ¢ 5,567.32 ¢ 4,122.47 ,
e — e R T Tk

¥ Notes ;

freferred to in Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013,

2 Changes in liabilities arisin from financing activities
¢ + Brnticuds-




GMR POCHANPALLI EXPRESSWAYS LIMITED
CIN - U45200KA2005PLC049327

1 Company Overview and Significant Accounting Policies:

1.1¢Company Overview

(GMR Pochanpalli Expressways Limited {the Company) is engaged in development of highways on build, operate and transfer model on annuity
(basis. This entity is a Special Purpose Vehicle which has entered into a Concession Agreement with National Highways Authority of India for
fcarrying out the project of Design, Construction, Development, Improvement, Operation and Maintenance for rehabilitation and strengthening
(of existing 2-lane portion from km 367.000 (Adloor Yellareddy) to km 447.000 (Kalkallu), covering 80.745 kms, and Improvement, operation

- he state of Andhra Pradesh, LV
v lanes under a coneession on build, operate and transfaef 760" ) through with private sector participation thereof,

¢ The Company is public limited company incorporated and domiciled in India and has its registered nffice 562547 L Sy ‘mucse; Museunt Road,
¢ Bangalore, Karnataka - 560025. The Lomnaon PResgnriaphrnace bt pusiness at Toopran, Andhra Pradesh .

«The Company's Holding Company is GMR Highways Limited while ultimate Holding Company is GMR Power & Urban Infra Limited /GMR
“Enterprises Private Limited.

¢The standalone financial statements of the Company for the year ended March 31
(resolution of the Board of Directors on April 27, 2023,

oy

-2 Significant accounting policies

« The significant accounting policies applied by the company in the preparation of its financial statements are listed below. Such accounting
¢ policies have been applied consistently to all the periods presented in these financial statements, unless otherwise indicated.

« Basis of preparation

¢ The financial statements are prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS), under the historical cost convention on the
¢ accrual basis except for certain financial instruments which are measured at fair values, the provisions of Companies Act, 2013 (the ‘Act’) (to
« the extent notified). The Ind AS are prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with Rule 3 of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
{ Rules, 2015 and relevant amendment rules issued thereafter.

¢ Accounting policies have been consistently applied except where a newly issued accounting standard is initially adopted or a revision to an
« existing accounting standard requires a change in the accounting policy hitherto in use.

« The standalone financial statements are presented in 'IndianRupees' (INR) which is also the Company's functional currency and all values are
(disclosed to the nearest Rupees in Lakhs with two decimals (INR 00,000.00), except when otherwise indicated.

¢« Summary of significant accounting policies
1 a) Use of estimates
¢ The preparation of these financial statements in conformity with the recognition and measurement principles of IND AS requires the
© management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts

« Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in
which the estimates are revised and future periods are affected.
b)Current versus non-current classification
< Assets and Liabilities in the balance sheet have been classified as either current or non—current based upon the requirements of Schedule
¢l notified under the Companies Act, 2013.
« An asset has been classified as current if
+ (a) itis expected to be realized in, or is intended for sale or consumption in, the Company’s normal operating cycle; or
( (b} itis held primarily for the purpose of being traded; or
©(c) it is expected to be realized within twelve months after the reporting date; or
© (d) it is cash or cash equivalent unless it is restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months after the
«reporting date. All other assets have been classified as non—current,

¢ Aliability has been classified as current when

¢ (a) itis expected to be settled in the Company’s normal operating cycle; or
« (b) itis held primarily for the purpose of being traded; or

< (c) it is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting date; or

© (d) the Company does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting
¢ date. All other liabilities have been classified as non—current.

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash equivalents. The
« company has identified twelve months as its operating cycle.

/ﬁ%




GMR POCHANPALLI EXPRESSWAYS LIMITED
CIN - U45200KA2005PLC049327

1 Company Overview and Significant Accounting Policies:

¢¢) Fair value measurement

« The Company measures financial instruments at fair value at each balance sheet date.
¢ Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an a
« barticipants at the measurement date. The fair value meas
. transfer the liability takes place either:

< 1} In the principal market for the asset or liability, or

¢ i) In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability

(The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.

(The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the asset or
¢ liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.

¥ A fair value measurement of a non-financial asse
¢ the asset in its highest and best use or by selling i

sset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
urement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or

t takes into account a market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using
't to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

 The Company uses valuation techni

ques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure
{ fair value, maximising the use of rel

evant observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

¢ All assets and liabilities for which fair value is meas

ured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within the fair value
« hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest |

evel input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

{Level 1 — Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active mark:zeté 107 ideritical assets or liabilities
% Level 2 — Inputs other than quoted prices included within Le
< orindirectly (i.e. derived from prices)

¢ Level 3 —

vel 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices)

Inputs for the assets or liabilities that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).

« For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Company determines whether transfers
« have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation (based on the lowest leve| input that is significant to the fair
* value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.
d) Revenue Recognition
Revenue from operations:
« Finance income for concession arrangements under finaorial. aseat

¢ from operations and maintenance services and overla
\ services are rendered.

mndakinsrecognized using the effective interest method. Revenues
Y services are recognized concession arrangements in each period as and when

Effective from April 01, 2018, the Company has adopted Ind AS 115
up transition method, applied to the contracts that were not compl
+ transition method, the comparatives have not been retrospectively

“Revenue from Contracts with Customers” using the cumulative catch-
eted as of April 01, 2018. In accordance with the cumulative catch up
adjusted and continues to be reported as per Ind AS 18 “Revenue”,

¢ Revenue is measured based on the consideration that is s

pecified in a contract with a customer or is expected to be received in exchange
¢ for the products or services and excludes amounts colle

cted on behalf of third parties. Revenue is recognized upon transfer of control of
« promised products or services to customers. To recognize revenues, the Company applies the following five step approach: (1) identify the
« contract with a customer, (2) identify the performance obligations in the contract, (3) determine the transaction price, (4) allocate the

transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract, and (5) recognize revenues when a performance obligation is satisfied,
¢ The revenue is recognised when (or as) the performance obli

gation is satisfied, which typically occurs when (or as) control over the
1 products or services is transferred to a customer.

¢ Contract modifications are accounted for when additions
+ Thne-atcuotiung tor moditications of contracts involves assessin
« whether the pricing is at the standalone selling price. Services added that are not distinct are accounted for on a cumulative catch-up basis
¢ while those that are distinct are accounted for prospectively,
standalone selling price, or as a termination of the existing con

< price.

7]

either as a separate contract, if the additional services are priced at the
tract and creation of a new contract if not priced at the standalone selling

A contract asset is the right to consideration in exchan
transferring goods or services to a customer before
recognised for the earned consideration that is conditio

ge for goods or services transferred to the customer. If the Company performs by
the customer pays consideration or before payment is due, a contract asset is
nal. Contract assets are initially recognised as revenue earned on account of service
d over the period of time as receipt of consideration is conditional on successful
iodic maintenance services under the service concession arrangements. Once the
the contract assets are classified as receivable under service concession arrangements.
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GMR POCHANPALLI EXPRESSWAYS LIMITED
CIN - U45200KA2005PLC049327

1 Company Overview and Significant Accounting Policies:

S A contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the Company has received consideration {or an
& amount of consideration is due) from the customer. If a customer pays consideration before the Company transfers goods or services to
{ the customer, a contract liability is recognised when the payment is made or the payment is due (whichever is earlier). Contract liabilities

« Finance income and other income:

«Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the
< amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at
« the effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of

< the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying amount on initial recognition. Interest income is included in other income in the statement of
< profit and loss.

< On disposal of current investments, the difference between its carrying amount and net disposal proceeds is charged or credited to the
( statement of profit and loss. Such income is included under the head “other income” in the statement of profit and loss.

< Dividend income is accounted for in the year in which the right to receive the same is established by the reporting date.
¢ ) Property, Plant & Ecuipmant...
« Property, Plant & Equipment are stated at acquisition cost less accumulated depreciation and cumulative impairment. Such cost includes
< the cost of replacing part of the plant and equipment and borrowing costs for long-term construction projects if the recognition criteria are
¢ met.
< Recognition:
< The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment shall be recagnised as an asset if, and only if:

¢ (a) it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the entity; and
< (b) the cost of the item can be measured reliably.

( When significant parts of plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, Company depreciates them separately based on
¢ their specific useful lives. Likewise, when a major inspection is performed, its cost is recognised in the carrying amount of the plant and

\ equipment as a replacement if the recognition criteria are satisfied. All other repair and maintenance costs are recognised in profit or loss
Casincurred.

{ The present value of the expected cost for the decommissioning of an asset after its use is included in the cost of the respective asset if the
* recognition criteria for a provision are met. Refer significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions and provisions for further
< information about the recorded decommissioning provision.

* Gains or losses arising from de-recognition of tangible assets are measured as the difference between the net disposable proceeds and the
« carrying amount of the asset and are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss when the asset is derecognized.

\ Further, When each major inspection is performed, its cost is recognised in the carrying amount of the item of property, plant and
( equipment as a replacement if the recognition criteria are satisfied,
( Any remaining carrying amount of the cost of the previous inspection (as distinct from physical parts) is derecognised.

¢ Machinery spares which are specific to a particular item of PPE and whose use is expected to be irregular are capitalized as fixed assets.

* Spare parts are capitalized when they meet the definition of PPE, i.e., when the company intends to use these during more than a period
¢ of 12 months,

( Depreciation on PPE is provided on straight line method, up to the cost of the asset (net of residual value), in accordance with the useful
¢ lives prescribed under Schedule I to the Companies Act, 2013 which are as below:

( Plant and equipment *.4-15 years
( Office equipment "5 years
. Furniture and fixtures 10 years
: Vehicles { 8-10 years
© Computers « 3 years

© Depreciation on additions is being provided on a pro-rata basis from the date of such additions. Similarly, depreciation on assets
« sold/disposed off during the year is being provided up to the dates on which such assets are sold/disposed off. Modification or extension to
“an existing asset, which is of capital nature and which becomes an integral part thereof is depreciated prospectively over the remaining
¢ useful life of that asset.

' The residual values, useful lives and methads of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at each financial year end and
¢ adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.
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Intangible assets
« Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on i
“in the nature of purchase is their fair value as at the date of amalgamation. Followin,
(cost less accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses, if any.
CThe useful lives of intangible assets are assessed as either finite or indefinite.
Cintangible assets with finite lives are amortised over the useful economic life and assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication
<that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and the amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite useful

¢life are reviewed at least at the end of each reporting period. Changes in the expected useful life or the expected pattern of consumption
¢ of future economic benefits embodied in the asset are considered to modify the a isa etindutrathad i .
treated 3 anges ir

nitial recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired in an amalgamation

g initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at
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k) Leases

-

¥ The determination of whether an arrangement is (or contains) a lease is basad on the substance of the arrangement at the inception of the
¢lease. The arrangement is, or contains, a lease if fulfilment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of 3 specific asset or assets and the
farrangement conveys a right to use the asset or assets, even if that right is not explicitly specified in an arrangement,

1 Alease is classified at the inception date as a finance lease or an operating lease.

¢ The Company is the lessee
« Right-of-use assets

sscheduled increase in rent compensate the lessor for expected inflationary costs.

i For any new contracts entered into on or after Aprill 2019, the Company considers whether a contract is, or contains a lease. A lease is
¢ defined as ‘a contract, or part of a contract, that conveys the right to use an asset (the underlying asset) for a period of time in exchange
¢ for consideration’.

{ The Company enters into leasing arrangements for office premises. The assessment of the lease is based on several factors, including, but
©not limited to, transfer of ownership of leased asset at end of lease term, lessee’s option to extend/purchase etc.

« At lease commencement date, the Company recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability on the balance sheet. The right-of-use
( asset is measured at cost, which is made up of the initial measurement of the lease liability, any initial direct costs incurred by the
« Company, an estimate of any costs to dismantle and remove the asset at the end of the lease (if any), and any lease payments made in
. advance of the lease commencement date (net of any incentives received).

 The Company depreciates the right-of-use assets on a straight-line basis from the lease commencement date to the earlier of the end of
{ the useful life of the right-of-use asset or the end of the lease term. The Company also assesses the right-of-use asset for impairment when
« such indicators exist. At lease commencement date, the Company measures the lease liability at the present value of the lease payments
\ unpaid at that date, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease if that rate is readily available or the Company's incremental
¢ borrowing rate. Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability are made up of fixed payments (including in substance
« fixed payments) and variable payments based on an index or rate. Subsequent to initial measurement, the liability will be reduced for
« Payments made and increased for interest. It is re-measured to reflect any reassessment or madification, or if there are changes in-
« substance fixed payments. When the lease liability is re-measured, the corresponding adjustment is reflected in the right-of-use asset. The
« Company has elected to account for short-term leases using the practical expedients. Instead of recognising a right-of-use asset and lease

« liability, the payments in relation to these are recognised as an expense in statement of profit and loss on a straight-line basis over the
¢ lease term.

<'The Company is the lessor
¢ Leases are classified as finance leases when substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership transfer from the Company to the
€ lessee. Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are recorded as receivables at the Company's net investment in the leases. Finance

€ lease income is allocated to accounting periods so as to reflect a constant periodic rate of return on the net investment outstanding in
¢ respect of the lease.

« Leases In which the Company does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of an asset are classified as operating
« leases. Rental income from operating lease is recognised on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease. Initial direct costs

©incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised over the
< lease term on the same basis as rental income.

< Lease liability and ROU asset have been separately presented in the Balance Sheet and lease payments have been classified as financing
< cash flows.

«#There is no transitional effect on adoption of Ind AS 116 as at April 1, 2019.

I) Impairment
« The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any indication exists, or
« when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the company estimates the asset'’s recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable
<amount is the higher of an asset's or cash generating units’ (CGUs) net selling price and its value in use, The recoverable amount is
¢ determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets
< or group of assets, Where the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is
« written down to its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value
< using a pre—tax discount rate that reflects current market asses ; me val T money and the risks specific to the asset. |
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1 Company Overview and Significant Accounting Policies:

< assets, where the revaluation was taken to revaluation reserve. In this case.the.ipoainearts
¢ UPTO TR amount ot any previous revaluation,

: pt for previously revalued tangible fixed
a5 ecagnrea I ta revaldation reserve

< After impairment, depreciation is provided on the revised carrying amount of the asset over its remaining useful life,

¢ An assessment is made at each reporting date as to whether there is any indication that
« longer exist or may have decreased. If such indication exists, the company estimates the a
« recognized impairment loss is reversed only if there has b

¢ amount since the last impairment loss was recognized.

« recoverable amount, nor exceed the carrying amount that would have baen determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been
¢ recognized for the asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognized in

previously recognized impairment losses may no

sset’s or CGU's recoverable amount. A previously,
een a chaneg i 1 the assumptions used to determine the assets recoverable
The reversal is limited so that the carrying amount of the asset does not exceed its

the statement of profit and Loss unless the asset is carried at a

¢ revalued amount, in which case the reversal is treated as a revaluation increase,

m) Provisions, contingent liabilities, contingent assets and capital commitments

<

Contingent Liabilities

non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the control of the Company or a present obligation that is not recognized
because it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation. A contingent liability also arises in
extremely rare cases where there is a liability that cannot be recognized because it cannot be measured reliably. The Company does not

¢ recognize a contingent liability but discloses its existence in the financial statements, Contingent assets are only disclosed when it is

-

probable that the economic benefits will flow to the entity.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that
an outflow of resources embodying econemic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the

amount of the obligation. When the Company's expects some or all of a pravision to be reimbursed, for example, under an insurance
contract, the reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset, but only when the reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense relating

« 1o a provision is presented in the statement of profit and loss net of any reimbursement,

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects, when appropriate,
the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a

" finance cost.

n} Retirement and other Employee Benefits

L1

[t

L W T N

1

Short term employee benefits and defined contribution plans.

All employee benefits payable/available within twelve months of rendering the service are classified as short-term employee benefits.
Benefits such as salaries, wages and bonus atc.are recognised in the statement of profit and loss in the period in which the employee
renders the related service.

Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund is a defined contribution scheme. The Company has no obligation, other than the
contribution payable to the provident fund.

The Company recognizes contribution payable to the provident fund scheme as expenditure, when an employee renders the related
service. If the contribution payable to the scheme for service received before the reporting date exceeds the contribution already paid, the
deficit payable to the scheme is recognized as a liability after deducting the contribution already paid. if the contribution already paid
exceeds the contribution due for services received before the balance sheet date, then excess is recognized as an asset to the extent that
the pre-payment will lead to, for example. a reduction in future payment or a cash refund.

Compensated absences

v atcarmuidten léave, which'is expected to be utilized within the next 12 months, is treated as short-term employee beefit. The company

t measures the expected cost of such absences as the additional amount that it expects to pay as a result of the unused entitlement that has
« accumulated at the reporting date,

+ The company treats accumulated leave expected to be carried forward beyond twelve months, as long-term employee benefit for
¢ measurement purposes. Such long-term compensated absences are provided for based on the actuarial valuation using the projected unit
¢ credit method at the year-end. Actuarial gains/losses are immediately taken to the statement of profit and loss and are not deferred. The
¢ company presents the leave as a current liability in the balance sheet, to the extent it does not have an unconditional right to defer its

¢ settlement for 12 months after the reporting date. Where company has the unconditional legal and contractual right to defer the
¢ settlement for a period beyond 12 months, the same is presented as non-current liability.

v Defined benefit plans
< Gratuity
- Brehdtuity s a defined benefit scheme. The cost of providing benefits under the scheme is determined on the basis of actuarial valuation

under projected unit credit (PUC) method.

The company recognizes termination benafit as a liability and an expense when the company has a present obligation as a result of past
event, it is probable that an outflow . of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. If the termination benefits fall due more than 12 months after the balance sheet
date, they are measured at present value of future cash flows using the discount rate determined by reference to market ’ yields at the
balance sheet date on government bonds, -
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¢ Remeasurements

excluding amounts included in net interest on the
amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability),
eet with a corresponding debit or credit

to retained earnings through QCI in th = penod in
nterenssdindd 1o prétic of 10ss in subsequent periods.

« Which they occur. Remeasutements ata.n

« Past service costs are recognised in profit or loss on the earlier of:

U >The date of the plan amendment or curtailment, and
5

> The date that the Group recognises related restructuring costs
Net

interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit liability or asset.
¢ o) Financial Instruments

¢ Afinancial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a finan
v entity.
1 i} Financial assets

cial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity instrument of another
< Initial ruH*L?E‘ e
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« For recognition of impairment loss on other financial ets and risk exposure, the company determines

that whether there has been a
nt increase in the credit ris 2 initial recognition. If credit risk has not increased significantly, 12-month ECL is used to provide
< for impairment loss. However, if credit risk has increased significantly, lifetime EC

- If, in a subsequent period, credit quality of the
¢ instrument impro such that there is no longer a significant increase in credit risk since initia ol
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¢ p) Cash and cash equivalents

¥ Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and in hand and the short-term deposits with an original maturity of
1 three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. Bank Overdrafts are shown with in borrowings under
( Current Liabilities in the Balance Sheet.

¢ For the purpose of the statement of cashflows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-

term deposits, as defined above, net of
¢ outstanding bank overdrafts as they are considered an integral part of the Company’s cash manage|

ment.

¢ q) Foreign currencies

I Exchange differences arisin

g on the retranslation or settlement of other monetary items are included in the statement of profit and loss for
¢ the period.

¢f) Earnings per share
1 Basic Earnings Per Share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to e
¢ average number of equity shares outstanding during the period.
v For the purpose of calculating Diluted Earnings Per Share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders and the
© weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares,

quity shareholders by the weighted

¢ 5) Corporate Social Responsibility Expenditure
« The Company charges its Corporate Social Responsibility Expenditure during the year, to the Statement of Profit and Loss.

© t) Non-current assets held for sale/ disposal

+ The Company classifies non-current assets as held for sale/ disposal if their carrying amounts will be recovered principally through a sale
¢ rather than through continuing use. Actions required to complete the sale should indicate that it is unlikely that significant changes to the

¢ sale will be made or that the decision to sell will be withdrawn. Management must be committed to the sale expected within one year
« from the date of classification.
© The criteria for held for sale classification is regarded met only when the assets or disposal group is available for immediate sale in its
© present condition, subject only to terms that are usual and customary for sales of such assets, its sale is highly probable; and it will
¢ 8enuinely be sold, not abandoned. The Company treats sale of the asset to be highly probable when:

< a) The appropriate level of management is committed to a plan to sell the asset,

¢ b) An active programme to locate a buyer and complete the plan has been initiated,

€ c) The asset (or disposal group)is being actively marketed for sale at a price that is reasonable in relation to its current fair value,

¢ d) The sale is expected to qualify for recognition as a completed sale within ane year from the date of classification, and

+ ) Actions required to complete the plan indicate that it is unlikely that significant changes to the plan will be made or that the plan will be
( withdrawn.

« Non-current assets held for sale are measured at the lower of their carrying amount and the fair value less costs to sell. Assets and
« liabilities classified as held for sale are presented separately in the standalone balance sheet.

¢ 1.3 Key accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions
v The preparation of the company’s financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the
1 reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities.
« Actual results could differ from those estimates. Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Uncertainty about

¢ these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities
¢ affected in future periods.

¢ The estimate and the underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period
¢ inwhich are estimate is revised and future periods affected.

« Significant judgements and the estimates relating to the carrying values of assets and liabilities, provision for employee benefits and others
¢ provisions, commitments and contingencies and fair value measurements of investments,

<) Critical Accounting Estimates and Assumptions :
+The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date, that have a significant risk of
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¢ a) Income tax

¢ Significant management judgement is required to determine the amount of deferred tax that can be recognised, based upon the likely
timing and the level of future taxable profits together with future tax planning strategies considering the tax holiday period available to
Cinfrastructure undertaking. Refer note no.20.04

“ b) Fair value measurement of financial instruments

¢ When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot be measured based on quoted prices
€ in active markets, their fair value is measured using valuation techniques including the DCF model. The inputs to these models are taken
¢ from observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of Judgement is required in establishing fair values.
¢ ludgements include considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility. Changes in assumptions about these factors
« could affect the reported fair value of financial instruments. Refer note no.29 for further disclosures.

¢ €] Contingencies

< Contingent liabilities may arise from the ordinary course of business in relation to claims against the Company, including legal and
¢ contractual claims. By their nature, contingencies will be resolved only when one or more uncertain future events oceur or fail to occur.
< The assessment of the existence, and potential quantum, of contingencies inherently involves the exercise of significant judgement and the
¥ use of estimates regarding the outcome of future events. [Refer note no.31]

. ) Defined benefit plans (gratuity benefits)

\ The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan and the present value of the gratuity obligation are determined using actuarial valuations. An
¢ actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future. These include the
¢ determination of the discount rate, future salary increases and mortality rates. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its
< long term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each
( reporting date.

 The parameter most subject to change is the discount rate. In determining the appropriate discount rate for plans operated in India, the
¢ management considers the interest rates of government bonds.

< The mortality rate is based on publicly available mortality tables for India. Those mortality tables tend to change only at the interval in
© response to demographic changes. Future salary increases and gratuity increases are based on expected future inflation rates in India.

¢ i) Significant judgements :
< a) Provision for periodic maintenance {overlay activities)
¢ As per the terms of concession agreement, the Company is required to carry out periodic major maintenance of project roads once in
© every five years which requires technical evaluation and critical assumptions, accounting estimates and judgements, The management has
« estimated the cost to be incurred on such periodic maintenance to recognise the provision as per the requirements of Ind AS 37. Further
¢ details are given in note no.16
© b) Expected Credit Loss on Loans:
1 With respect to loans and deposits given to Group Companies, the Company has not considered any increase in credit risk, considering the
| assurances through support letters given by the Holding Company to pay the amount inspite of cases of delay in payments by the Group
¢ Companies. The expected credit losses have not been provided other than those provided for based on its modification losses in lieu of
VECL. The Company has also assessed the credibility of the Group Companies and that of the Holding Company and is of the view that it
« does not expect any financial loss in respect of the said loans and deposits. Refer note no.s.

« 1.4 Introduction of new standards and amendments to existing standards
< Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA”) notifies new standards or amendments to the existing standards under Companies (Indian Accounting

¢ Standards) Rules as issued from time to time. On March 31, 2023, MCA amended the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment
* Rules, 2023, as below:

«i. Ind AS 1 - Presentation of Financial Statements

{This amendment requires the entities to disclose their material accounting policies rather than their significant accounting policies and
¢include corresponding amendments to Ind AS 107 and Ind AS 34. The effective date for adoption. of_.thif..ameudmnmjfuannarpendas"
< beginning on or after Anril1_2022, TeaCnwpany nbs veanlarda the amendrent and the impact of the amendment is insignificant in the

¢ financial statements.

<ii. Ind AS 8 - Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors

+ This amendment has introduced a definition of ‘accounting estimates’ and included amendments to Ind AS 8 to help entities distinguish

< changes in accounting policies from changes in accounting estimates. The effective date for adoption of this amendment is annual periods

« beginning on or after April 1, 2023. The Company has evaluated the amendment and there is no impact on its financial statements.

Ylii. Ind AS 12 - Income Taxes

«This amendment has narrowed the scope of the initial recognition exemption so that it does not apply to franeactinne thas o
wedual and nffcattine tamnaran: Al . _ P , ;
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023

2 Property, plant and equipment

Rupees in Lakhs ¢

Particulars - Plant and Computers Office Vehicles Furniture and Total _
machinery ¢ Equipments' Fixtures ¥
¢ Gross block
¢ As at April 01, 2021 55.22¢ 126 f 6.66 ¢ 35.64 , 0.63 ¢ 99.41 v
{ Additions 2117 ¢ 0.66 ¢ 0.27¢ 8.08 ¢ 6.30 ¢ 36.48 ¢
¢ Disposals / Adjustments - ¢ s Slimy - X - ¢ K
§ As at March 31, 2022 76.39 7 1.92¢ 6.93 ¢ 43.72 ¢ 693 ¢ 135.89¢
\ Additions 0.84 r 11.65 ¢ 347¢ - -y 15.96 ¢
¢ Disposals / Adjustments - 7 - r - [6.98) ¢ - (6.98) r
© As at March 31, 2023 77.23% 13.57 ¢ 10.40 * 36.74 ¢ 6.93+¢ 144.87
¢ Depreciation
© As at April 01, 2021 33.74 ¢ 0.84 ¢ 3.76¢ 17.36 « 0617 56.31 ¢
* Charge for the year 5,91 ¢ 0.47 ¢ 113 ¢ 3.31 ¢ 128 ¢ 1210 7
' Disposals / Adjustments 5 - X ) . T =
« As at March 31, 2022 39,65 1 131" 4.89 ¢ 20.67 ¢ 1.89 4 68.41 ¢
¥ Charge for the year 9.91 « 0.46 © 140 ¢ 4.05 o 175 ¢ 17.57 ¢
% Disposals / Adjustments ek = g - (6.98)« = f (6.98) ,
< As at March 31, 2023 49.56 177 ¢ 6.29 ¢ 17.74 ¢ 3.64¢ 79.00 ¢
' Net block
¢ Asat March 31, 2022 36.74 r 0.61¢ 2.04 ¢ 23,05+« 5.04 ¢ 67.48 ¢
« As at March 31, 2023 27.67 ¢ 11.80 ¢ 4.11 ¢ 19.00 ¢ 3.29 ¢ 65.87 ¢

< Notes:

¢ 1 Deemed Cost: The Company during the Financial Year 2016-17, h
¢ the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 3 of the Companies (I
¢ thereafter. The Company had elected to use its previous GAAP
¢ Purpose of first time adoption of Indian Accounting Standard
¢ Standards'. Accordingly the value of gross block disclosed above
« Is considered as deemed cost.

€ 2 Assets are owned and are used for own use, unless otherwise mentioned,
« 3 For charges created on property, plant and equipments refer note no.14

{This Space has been intentionally left blank)

ad first time adopted Indian Accounting Standards ('Ind AS') under section 133 of
ndian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and relevant amendment rules issued
carrying value as at April 01, 2015 being the opening balance sheet date for the
5 as per Para D7AA of Ind AS 101, 'First-time Adoption of Indian Accounting
includes carrying value of assets at the transition date (i.e., April 01, 2015) which
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023 ¢

3 Other Intangible Assets «

‘Rupees in Lakhs
Particulars ¢ Software ¢ Total
¢ Gross block
¢ AsatApril 01, 2021 o =
. Additions 12.53¢ 12,53 ¢
¢ Disposals / Adjustments = f -
¢ As at March 31, 2022 12,53 ¢ 12.53¢
« Additions 4.80 v 4.80 ¥
( Disposals / Adjustments o - ¢
« As at March 31, 2023 17.33 ¢ 1733 ¢
( Depreciation
« As at April 01, 2021 , - -
¢ Charge for the year 0.16 ¢ 0.6
¢ Disposals / Adjustments - R |
¢ As at March 31, 2022 0.16 ¢ 0.16 ¢
« Charge for the year 2.79 ¢ 2.79 ¢
( Disposals / Adjustments =Y -
¢ As at March 31, 2023 2957 295 ¢
© Net block
¢ AsatMarch 31, 2022 1237 ¢ 12.37¢
¢ As at March 31, 2023 1438 ¢ 14387

(This Space has been intentionally left biank)
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4 Right of use Assets .

 Rupees in Lakhs
Particulars - Leashold Buildings ,~  Total
¢ Gross block
¢ AsatApril 1, 2021 1,044.66 ¢ 1,044.66 ©
¢ Additions o g,
¢ Disposals / Adjustments (464.29) ¥ (464.29) ¢
< As at March 31, 2022 580.37 « 580.37 ¢
¢ Additions i iy
« Disposals / Adjustments = 2% : {,
€ As at March 31, 2023 580.37 ¢ 580.37 r
¢ Depreciation
{ Asat April 1, 2021 348.22 ¢ 348.22 ¢
< Charge for the year 116.08 ¢ 116.08 ¢
¢ Disposals / Adjustments -« e
¢ As at March 31, 2022 464.30 7 464.30 ¢
“ Additions 116.07 ¥ 116.07 ¢
¢ Disposals / Adjustments o SRl
¢ AsatMarch 31, 2023 580.37 ¢ 580.37 ¢
* Net block
‘< As at March 31, 2022 116.07 7 116.07 €
«As at March 31, 2023 i Iy

L

« The aggregate depreciation expense on ROU assets is included under depreciation and amortization expense in the statement of Profit and Loss.

¢ For details of lease liability, refer note no.15 below.

¢ (This Space has been intentionally left blank}
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5 < Loans
¢ Rupees in Lakhs

« Particulars ¢« March 31, 2023 ¢March 31, 2022
¢ Non-current:

« Carried at amortised cost
¢ Loan Receivables — considered good - secured i -

« Loan Receivables — considered good - unsecured = b
¢ Loans and advances to :

« Related parties [Refer note no.40 and note (a) below] 2,510.00 ¥ 2,510.00 ©
{ Loan Receivables which have significant increase in credit risk [Refer note no. (b) below] - -0
¢ Loan Receivables - credit impaired [Refer note no. (b) below] =y = g
{ Total 2,510.00 " 2,510.00 ¢
S Current:

o Carried at amortised cost

¢ Loan Receivables — considered good - secured Zigg =
¢ Loan Receivables - considered good - unsecured
¢ Loans and advances to:

¢ Related parties [Refer note no.40 and note (a) below] 24,404,017 24,595.47
1 Loan Receivables which have significant increase in credit risk [Refer note no. (b) below] - f - ¢
» Loan Receivables — credit impaired [Refer note no. (b) below] i N
¢ Total 24,404,017 24,595.47 ¢
¢ Total 26,914.01 ¢ 27,105.47
 Notes:

-

" a) Details of loan given to related parties:
¢ (i) An unsecured loan of Rs.10,629.00 Lakhs (March 31, 2022 : Rs.10,820.46 Lakhs) given to GMR Highways Limited (including loan given to GMR
¢ Tambaram Tindivanam Expressways Limited and GMR Tuni Anakapalli Expressways Limited merged w.e.f August 11, 2022 with GMR Highways Limited as
{ per the NCLT, Mumbai Bench-1V, CP(CAA)/207/MB/2021 in CA(CAA)/11/{MB)/2021 Merger order dated 03.08.2022) shall be repayable within 1 year from
¢ date of renewed agreement.
v (i) An unsecured loan of Rs.12,150.56 Lakhs (March 31, 2022 : Rs.12,150.56 Lakhs) given to GMR Power and Urban Infra Limited (earlier GMR
« Infrastructure Ltd) shall be repayable within 1 year from date of renewed agreement.
« {iii) An unsecured loan of Rs.177.00 Lakhs (March 31,2022 Rs AL hhgh e tfve séCunués Linited shall ba repayable within 1 year in terms

¢ wi réitewed agreement.

. (iv) An unsecured loan of Rs.861.00 Lakhs (March 31, 2022 : Rs.861.00 Lakhs) given to GMR Tambaram Tindivanam Expressways Limited merged w.e.f
August 11, 2022 with GMR Highways Limited as per the NCLT, Mumbai Bench-Iv, CP(CAA)/207/MB/2021 in CA(CAA)/11/(MB)/2021 Merger order dated

p 03.08.2022.

« (v) An unsecured loan of Rs.319.92 Lakhs (March 31, 2022 : Rs.319.92 Lakhs) given to GMR Tuni Anakapalli Expressways Limited merged w.e.f August 11,

« 2022 with GMR Highways Limited as per the NCLT, Mumbai Bench-Iv, CP(CAA)/207/MB/2021in CA(CAA)/11/{MB)/2021 Merger order dated 03.08.2022.

{

« (vi) Loan granted during earlier years along with interest accrued of Rs.2,510.00 Lakhs to GMR SEZ and Port Holdings Private Limited has been converted
« tolong term loan during FY 2021-22, shall be repayble within 3 years or further extended period as mutually agreed between the parties.

*{vii) An unsecured loan of Rs.266.53 Lakhs (March 31, 2022 : 266.53 Lakhs) given to GMR Ambala Chandigarh Expressways Private Limited shall be
¢ repayable within 1 year from date of renewed agreement.

b)(The Company has undertaken an assessment of these loans considering the creditworthiness of the borrower along with the support letter of holding
¢company GMR Power & Urban Infra Ltd (GPUIL) [earlier, GMR Infrastructure Ltd (GIL)] to make good the amounts on defaults if any by the Group
¢ Companies. In view of such assessment and obtaining of the support letter received fremufirP Ul 1e management i€ ot the opinion that the loans are
¢ BOU dir o cFédi impairment is toreseen which requires credit losses to be recognized other than those considered in the modification losses. GPUIL
¢ has ensured that they will be able to provide sufficient funds to these Group Companies to make payment of the loans / deposits along with interest
( accrued thereon and accordingly the loans / deposits given by the Company are considered good and no further provision is considered necessary in the
¢ accompanying financial statements. Further, the company being a special purpose vehicle, going to be merged with holding company on completion of
¢ the service concession period.
¥ ¢) There are no loans receivables which are credit impaired or which have a significant increase in credit risk based on the information available with the
¢ Company.
¢ d) There are no Loans or Advances in the nature of loans are granted to promoters, Directors, KMPs and the related parties (as defined under Companies
{ Act, 2013), either severally or Jointly with any other person, that are (a) repayable on demand or (b) without specifying any terms or period of repayment.

¥ &) The fair value of Non current and current loans are not materially different from the carrying value presented.




GMR POCHANPALLI EXPRESSWAYS LIMITED
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023

6 (Other financial assets

“Rupees in Lakhs
¢ Particulars « March31,2023 March 31, 2022
¢ Non-current:
¢ Carried at amortised cost

v Unsecured, considered good
¢ Receivable under service concession arrangements

"£330.1b < 8,799.26 ¢
rintacrescaterodoronioan o relatéd parties [Refer note no.40] 305.36 « 4472 ¢
 Security deposits
« with others 0.31¢ 0.31¢
« Depasit with government departments and exchanges * 12.88 ¢ 10.76¢
« Total 9,148.71 « 8,855.05 «
< Current:
T Carried at amortised cost
« Unsecured, considered good
¢ Receivable under service concession arrangements 3,732.19¢ 3,943.47
< Receivable towards change of scope work and claims receivable 402.79 ¢ 176.94 ¢
© Security deposits
© with others - < 0.11¢
¢ Interest accrued on loan to related parties (net of modification loss) [Refer note no.40] 7,495.817 6,204.20 ¢
¢ Interest accrued on deposits with banks 62.09¢ 35.07¢
* Amount receivable towards sale of CCD's [net) [Refer note nos.{b) below] 2,273.00 ° 2,273.00
« Penalty paid under protest [Refer note no.32] 2,623.99 © 2,623.99
16,589.87" 15,256.78
( Less: Provision for doubtful non-trade receivables (2,273.00) . (817.00)
« Total 14,316.87 ¢ 14,439.78
* Total 23,465.58 ¢ 23,294,83
(*

- includes Recovery Expense Fund (REF) with National Stock Exchange of India Ltd of Rs.2.85 Lakhs [March 31, 2022 : Rs.2.85 Lakhs]

< Notes:

¢ terms of the divestment plan, GIL (now GPUIL*) along with KSEZ, GMR SEZ & Port Holdings Limited and Kakinada Gateway Port Limited had entered into
¢ Securities Sale and Purchase Agreement (SSPA) with ARIPL), on September 24, 2020, as amended on March 31, 2021. The Company along with GIL, KSEZ
<and other group companies had entered into a Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) on March 31, 2021 with ARIPL. In terms of this MOU and
© debenture subscription agreement entered with Kakinada SEZ Limited on March 31, 2021, the Company had converted a portion of existing loan
ramounting to Rs.3,729.57 Lakhs into 3,72,95,676, 12% Compulsorily Convertible Debentures (CCD's) of Rs.10 each for a period of 29 years.

'b) The Company had entered into Debenture Purchase Agreement (DPA) on March 31, 2021 with Aurobindo Realty & Infrastructure Pvt Ltd (ARIPL) and
< Kakinada SEZ Ltd (KSEZ). In terms of DPA, the company had agreed ta sell 3,72,95,676 CCD's on closing date for a total consideration of Rs.4,181.97 Lakhs
< (including contingent consideration payable by ARIPL of Rs.2,147.85 Lakhs on achievement of milestones) subject to terms and conditions set out in DPA,
¢ Total consideration including additional payment of Rs.3,147.85 Lakhs payable as per Annexure | of DPA is based on achievement of certain agreed
< milestones primarily related to the sale of 2,500 acres of the land parcels at specified prices during the financial years ended March 31, 2023. These
« milestones are market dependent and are not under management control. The receivable/investment on CCD's had been fair valued as on March 31,
© 2021 by the Company at Rs.3,307.12 Lakhs {including upfront consideration of Rs.1,034.12 Lakhs) from an expert valuer who had considered various
¢ assumptions and scenarios on achievement of milestones with probable outcomes which was significantly dependent on future development in KSEZ and
T Governments approvals.

¢ The Company’s investment in KSEZ CCD's was transferred in the name of ARIPL on August 20, 2021 against the consideration received of Rs.1,034.12
« Lakhs and the balance amount receivable towards sale of investment in CCD's in KSEZ of R5.1,456.00 Lakhs (net of fair valuation loss) being contingent
< consideration was classified as 'Other Current Financial Assets",

 Milestone as stipulated in the agreement, could not be achieved by the end of March 31, 2023, the recoverablity of amount receivable is not certain.
© Accordingly, the company during the year, has charged of the balance amount receivable of Rs. 1,456.00 Lakhs,

« ™ transactions with GMR Infrastructure Limited [GIL] is transferred in the name of GMR Power and Urban Infra Limited [GPUIL] w.ef. January 01, 2022 in
¢ terms of the Composite Scheme of Arrangements approved by the National Company Law Tribunal (NCLT} vide its Order dated December 22, 2021.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023

7 ( Other assets

Rupees in Lakhs
¢ Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
< Non-current:
( Unsecured, considered good
\ Deferred Contract assets under service concession arrangements [Refer note (a) below] 5,314.99¢ 3,255.33 «
¢Prepaid expenses 66.27 ¢ 68.51,
Y Total 5,381.26 « 3,323.84 7
< Current:
% Unsecured, considered good
{ Advances other than capital advances
< Advance to suppliers of goods/services
€ to related parties [Refer note no.40] 1,311.95 ¢ 1,396.60 ¢
¢ to others 182.46¢ 107.27 ¢
¢ Advance to employees for expenses 1.15¢ 15.28¢
¢ Deferred Contract assets under service concession arrangements [Refer note (a) below] 3,396.51¢ 6,004.26 7
¢ Prepaid expenses 71.41¢ 192.68¢
¢ Balances with government departments 575.97 ¢ 73.38 ¢
< Total 5,539.45¢ 7,879.47 ¢
< Total 10,920.71 ¢ 11,203.31¢
 Notes

¢ a) Contract assets are initially recognised as revenue earned on account of service concession arrangements where revenue is recognised over the period
¢ of time as receipt of consideration is conditional on successful completion of performance obligations such as periodic maintenance services under the

¢ service concession arrangements. Once the performance obligation is fulfilled, the deferred contract assets are classified as receivable under service
¢ ¢oncession arrangements.

8 ( Income tax assets (net)
" Rupees in Lakhs

5 Particulars March 31, 2023, March 31, 2022
X
¢ Non-current:
« Advance income tax and tax deducted at source {net) [refer note no.20.03] 135.10 ¢ 139.10¢
Total 139.10 ¢ 139.10 ¥

9 ¢ Inventories
“Rupees in Lakhs

¢ Particulars March 31, 2023 ¢ March 31, 2022 %
\ Stores and spares [Refer note (b) below] 15.13¢ 39.71 ¢

Total 15.13 ¢ 3971
< Notes:

¢ a) Inventories are valued at lower of cost or net realizable value.
« b) For charges created on inventories refer nate no.14.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31,2023 ¢

10 Cash and cash equivalents «

" Rupees in Lakhs
Particulars ¢ r March 31, 2023 ¢ March 31, 2022

¢ Cashin hand

032¢ -
( Balances with banks
« - Current account 975.75 ¥ 392.367
¢ Fixed deposits 4,591.25 ¢ 3,730.11¢
Total 5,567.32 ¢ 4,122.47 ¢
¢ Note:
< a) For charges created on cash and bank balances refer note no.14.
¢ b) Fixed Deposit includes Rs.3,116.01 Lakhs earmarked for remitance of NCD redemption & Interest on NCD due on April 15, 2023.
<11  Other bank balances
¢ Rupees in Lakhs
< Particulars « March 31, 2023 ¢ March 31, 2022
( Fixed deposit with banks 243397 r 1,941.50 ¢
Total 2,433.97 1,941.50
¢ Note:

< a) For charges created on cash and bank balances refer note no.14.
< b) Includes margin deposit of Rs.2,009.86 Lakhs [March 31, 2022 : Rs.1,551.70 Lakhs] kept against bank guarantee,

¢ ¢} Includes debenture redemption investment of Rs.354.00 Lakhs [March 31, 2022 : Rs.650.99 Lakhs] deposited to the extent of 1 S%.nf. debentsrac s
< Maturing durine tha vacyca,.

B d) The fair value of other bank balances are not materially different from the carrying value presented.

< Break-up of financial assets ¢ Rupees in Lakhs
¢ Particulars March 31,2023 . March 31, 2022 ¢

< Financial assets carried at amortised cost
¢ Loans to group companies

26,914.01, 27,105.47 ¢
¢ Security deposit 0.31¢ 0.42¢
i Receivable under service concession 12,562.35¢ 12,742.73 ¢
¢ Cash and cash equivalents 5,567.32¢ 4,122.47¢
¢ Fixed deposit with banks (including interest accrued) 2,496.067 1,976.57¢
{ Other financial assets

10,840.83¢ 10,516.61 ¢
* Financial assets measured at fair value

 Total

58,380.88 ¢ 56,464.27 ©
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023
12 Equity share capital¢

“ Rupees in Lakhs
< Particulars < March31,2023 | March31, 2022

( Authorised
¢ 13,81,00,000 [March 31, 2022 13,81,00,000 equity shares of Rs.10 each]

13,810.00 ¢ 13,810.00¢
 45,90,000 [March 31, 2022 : 45,90,000 preference shares of Rs.100 each] 4,590.00 4,590.00 1
18,400.00° 18,400.00 ¢
¥ Issued, subscribed and fully paid-up
¢ 13,80,00,000 [March 31, 2022 : 13,80,00,000 equity shares of Rs.10 each] 13,800.00 < 13,800.00 ¢
¢ Total 13,800.00¢ 13,800.00 ¢
¢ Notes:

« a) Reconciliation of Shares Outstanding at the beginning and end of the reporting year

March 31, 2023 ¢

March 31, 2022 ¥

Numbers Rupees in Lakhs Numbers « Rupees in Lakhs (
¢ Equity shares of Rs. 10 each
¢ Balance at the beginning of the year 13,80,00,000 ¢ 13,800.00¢ 13,80,00,000 ¢ 13,800.00 ¢
¢ Shares issued during the year - ¢ - 5 = - q
¢ Balance at the end of the year 13,80,00,000 ¢ 13,800.00¢ 13,80,00,000 ¢ 13,800.00 «
¢ Preference shares of Rs. 100 each*
¢ Balance at the beginning of the year 44,50,000 ¢ 4,450.00 7 44,50,000¢ 4,450.00 ¢
¢ Shares issued during the year S 5 = 2T
¢ Balance at the end of the year 44,50,000 ¢ 4,450.00 < 44,50,000 ¢ 4,450,00 v

¥ *- equity component of preference shares of Rs.3,620.95 Lakhs (March 31, 2022: Rs.3,620.95 Lakhs) js classified -*ander Other Equity (refer note no.13)
“yaidnaiinu poruon br préterence shares is classified as Long term Borrowings (refer note no.14).

¢ b) Terms to Equity Shares

¢ The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs,10 per share,
(¢ Company declares and pay dividend in Indian rupees. The dividend
¢ ensuing Annual General meeting,

¢ In event of liquidation of the Company,
{ preferential amounts.

Each holder of equity is entitled to one vote per share. The
proposed by the Board of director is subject to the approval of the shareholder in

the holders of equity shares would be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company, after distribution of all
The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders,

< ¢) Terms to Preference Shares

each. Preference Shares are redeemable at premium at the option of

< the Board of Directors of the Company on October 15, 2026, with one day prior notice to the preference shareholders. Refer note nos.13 and 14 for

¢ equity and liabilities portion of Preference Shares,
¢ d) Details of the shareholders holding more than 5% shares of the Company
Name of Shareholder Numbers % of holding
< Equity shares of Rs. 10 each
¢ March 31, 2023
< GMR Highways Limited, the immediate holding Company

13,59,29,996 « 98.50% ¢
¢ March 31, 2022
€ GMR Highways Limited, the immediate holding Company 13,59,29,996 ¢ 98.50% <
< Preference shares of Rs.100 each
¢ March 31, 2023 )
¢ GMR Power and Urban Infra Limited, the ultimate holding Company w.e.f. 01.01.20224 44,50,000 ¥ 100,00% ©
« GMR Infrastructure Limited, the ultimate holding Company till 31.12.2021+ = - f

¢ March 31, 2022

€ GMR Infrastructure Limited, the ultimate holding Company till 31.12.20214 44,50,000 100.00% ¢
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31,2023 <

e) Shares held by holding/ ultimate holding company and/ or their subsidiaries/ associates ¢

« Name of Shareholder

© Numbers

< Equity shares of Rs. 10 each

¢ March 31, 2023
¢ GMR Highways Limited, the immediate holding Company

(Rupees in Lakhs

13,59,29,996 r 13,593.00¢
¢ GMR Power and Urban Infra Limited, the ultimate holding Company w.e.f. 01.01.20224 13,80.000 ¢ 138.00¢.
¢ GMR Energy Limited, a suhsidiaa: pPEERI, caddlinow shoslmary 6,90,000 ¥ 69.00F
v March 31, 2022
© GMR Highways Limited, the immediate holding Company 13,59,29,996 ¢ 13.50468.00"
¢ GMR Power and Urban Infra 1 'rmitﬂd..;hﬂarbimnménlﬂimngcompany W.E.1 01.01.20224 13,80,000 ¢ 138.007
¢ GMR Energy Limited, a subsidiary of GPUIL and fellow subsidiary 6,90,000 © 69.007
< Preference shares of Rs.100 each
+ March 31, 2023
¢ GMR Power and Urban Infra Limited, the ultimate holding Company w.e.f. 01.01.2022+ 44,50,000 © 4,450.00 ¢
March 31, 2022
{ GMR Power and Urban Infra Limited, the ultimate holding Company w.e.f. 01.01.20224 44,50,000 © 4,450,00 v
f) Shareholding of promoters as at March 31, 2023
¢ Name of the promoter No. of shares at Change during the No. of shares at the % of total shares % change during the
the beginning of year end of the year v [ year ¢
theyear <« b
« Fully paid up equity shares of INR 10 each
¢ GMR Power and Urban Infra Limited# 13,80,000 ¢ -y 13,80,000¢ 1.00% 0.00% ¥
< GMR Energy Limited 6,90,000 ¢ - f 6,90,000 0.50% ¢ 0.00% ¥
¢« GMR Highways Limited 13,59,29,996 < = 13,59,29,996 ¢ 98.50% « 0.00% ¢
§ GMR Business Process and Services Pvt. 1y i 1¢ 0.00% © 0.00%
© Ltd. representing and for the benefit of
« GMR Highways Ltd. . :
+ Dhruvi Securities Ltd. representing and for 11 - 1« 0.00% * 0.00%"
¢ the benefit of GMR Highways Ltd. ¢
7 GMR Aerostructure Services Limited 1" - F 1 0.00% ¢ 0.00% r
{ representing and for the benefit of GMR
« Highways Ltd.
« GMR Corporate Affairs Put. Ltd. 1t - 1 v 0.00% 0.00% |
¢ representing
« and for the benefit of GMR Highways Ltd.
1 Preference shares of Rs.100 each
¢ GMR Power and Urban Infra Limited” 44,50,000 - € 44,50,000 ¢ 100.00% ¢ 0.00% ©

< Mw.e.f. January 01, 2022, the shares held by GMR Infrastructure

« Composite Scheme of Arrangements approved by the National Company Law Tribunal (NCLT) vide its Order dated December 22, 2021.

< g) As per records of the Company including its register of share holders
< interest, the above share holding represents both legal and beneficial ownership of shares.

Limited is transferred in the name of GMR Power and Urban Infra Limited in terms of the

/members and other declarations received from share holders regarding beneficial

« h) The Company has not issued shares for consideration other than cash, during the period of five years immediately preceding the reporting date.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023 ¢

13 Other equity .

" Rupees in Lakhs
Particulars ¢ March 31, 2023 ( March 31, 2022

« Equity component of Preference shares
¢ Opening balance

3,620.95 ¢ 3,620.95¢
7 Add: Adjustment for the year B Tt e e
{ Closing balance 3,620.95¢ 3,620.95 «
. Debenture Redemption Reserve
‘ Open_.ing balance 9,259.44 9,259.44¢
“yMAda. Transferred from the statement of profit and loss [refer note (a) below] n i T
§ Closing balance 9,259.44 | 9,259.44 ¢
© Surplus / (deficit) in the statement of Profit and Loss > i
¢ Opening balance (1,229.51)¢ (2,857.71) ¢
¢ Add: Profit for the year 4,395.12 ¢ 1,628.20 ¢
{ Less: Transferred to Debenture redemption reserve during the year [refer note (a) below] - ¢ = ¢
r Closing balance 3,165.617 (1,229.51) ¢
¢ Other comprehensive income
< Opening balance (3.13)¢ 1i0¢
¢ Remeasurements gains/(loss) on defined benefit plans, net of tax effect 10.21 ¢ (4.23)¢
< Closing balance 7.08 ¢ (3.13) ¢
Total 16,053.08 ¢ 11,647.75 ¢

( Nature and purpose of reserve: 1

{ a) Debenture Redemption Reserve:

« The Company has created Debenture Redemption Reserve (DRR) mare than 25% of outstandin,

{ company available for payment of dividend for the purpose of redemption of debentures in acc

¢ and Companies (Specification of definitions details) Rules, 2014, as amended.

t b) Retained Earnings

{ Retained Earnings represents the amount that can be distributed by the Companv as dividenrs causéidering the requirements of the Companies Act, 2013,
¢ No'aividerids are distributed by the Company during the year.
! ¢) Equity component of Preference shares
¢ Equity component of Preference shares represents the difference in carrying value and fair value of Preference Shares issued to its parent on initial
i recognition. Fair value is determined by discounting the estimating the cash flows expected over the term of the instrument using an applicable discount
( rate. The equity component of related party transactions are adjusted to the carrying amount on account of extinguishment of liability.

g non-convertible debentures out of the profits of the
ordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013

« d) Other Comprehensive Income represents Re-measurement gains (losses) on defined benefit plans and its income tax effects if any.
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14  Borrowings,

¥ Rupees in Lakhs

¢ Particulars yMarch 31, 2023 ¢ March 31, 2022
- Long-term borrowines..
- Secured, at amortized cost
¢ Non-convertible debenture [Refer note (a) below] 14,793.82 19,350.22 ¢
« Unsecured, at amortized cost
1 Liability component of compound financial instruments
¢ Non-cumulative non-convertible preference shares issued to the ultimate holding 3,105.21 ¢ 2,805.51 ¢
i company [Refer Note (b) below]
i Total 17,899.03 ¥ 22,155.73 ¢
| Short-term borrowings:
{ Secured, at amortized cost
¢ Current maturities of Non-convertible debenture [Refer note (a) below] 4,556.40 ¢ 432579 v
¢ Total 4,556.40 ¢ 4,325.79 ¢
¢ Total 22,455.43 ¢ 26,481.52 «
Notes:

a) Secured non-convertible debenture:

b

- A

instalments commencing from April 15, 2010 to October 15, 2026.
¢ i) Terms of Security

-

-

India (NHAI) under the Concession agreement).

-~

¢ i) Maturity profile of 9.38% redeemable non-convertible Deh Ires of face value of Rs.10,00,000/- each are given below:

No. of Debentures Date of Rupees in Lakhs
¥ redemption © /

{ 227.90 15-10-2026 ¢ 2,275.00 ¢

¢ 269.10 15-04-2026 ¢ 2,691.00 ¢

{ 218.90 15-10-2025 ¢ 2,129.00 ¢

¢ 265.00 15-04-2025 ¢ 2,650.00 ¢

{ 257.20 15-10-2024 ¢ 2,572.00,

( 242.40 15-04-2024 ¢ 2,424.00 ¢

¢ 235.60 15-10-2023 ¢ 2,356.00¢

¢ 221,00 15-04-2023 2,210.00 ¢

During the financial year 2009-2010, the Company has issued 9.38% 6,500 Rated, taxable, listed, redeemable, non-convertible Debentures (NCDs) of the
face value of Rs.10,00,000 each which are which are listed on The National Stock Exchange of India. Debentures are repayable in 34 half yearly unequal

The listed, redeemable, non-convertible debentures are secured by way of first charge on all the assets of the Company both movable and immovable
properties, both present and future (including future annuity receivable) but excluding project assets {unless permitted by National Highways Authority of

b) Non-cumulative non-convertible Preference shares: ¢
« The Company had issued 44,50,000 8% Redeemable, Non-cumulative and Mon-Convertible preference shares of Rs.100 each. Preference Shares are
iredeemable at premium at the option of the Board of Directors of the Company on October 15, 2026, with one day prior notice to the preference
¢ shareholders. ,

© equity portion of Preference Shares,

« Rupees in Lakhs

¢ Particulars v March31,2023 ¢ March 31, 2022
¢ Opening balance 4,450.00¢ 4,450.00 ¢
¢ Add: Issued during the year - ¥ ZRNY;
¢ Closing balance 4,450.00 ¢ 4,450.00 ¢
¢ Less: Equity component transferred to Other Equity 3,620.95¢ 3,620.95 ¢
¢ Financial liability portion of preference shares B829.05 ¢ 829.05 ¢
( Add: Notional Interest recognized up to date 2,276.16 ¢ 1,976.46 ¢
¢ Liability portion of non convertible preference shares 3,105.21 ¢ 2,805.51
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15  Lease Liabilities

« Operating lease commitments - Company as a lessee : The Compan
« agreements mainly for office premises. The lease rentals paid during the
¢ lease payable are as follows:

y has entered into certain cancellable and non-cancellable operating lease
year and the maximum obligation on the long term non-cancellable operating

¢ The following is the break-up of current and non-current lease liabilities as at March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022:

r
Rupees in Lakhs
« Particulars © March31,2023 (" March 31, 2022

¢ Non-current lease liabilities

r Il r -
¢ Current lease liabilities* « 275.23 v 437.73
< Total 27522, € "A3713
« *includes lease liability due but ot padeeoobolnantesnetraate oF Rs.275.23 Lakhs (March 31, 2022; 298.03 Lakhs)
¢ The movement in lease liabilities during the year ended March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022 is as follows:
¥ _Rupees in Lakhs
. Particulars March 31, 2023 7 March 31, 2022 t
¢ Opening balance 437.73 1,145.82 ¢
¢ Additions/{reversal on modification of lease terms) - f (464.29) ¢
¢ Interest on lease fiability 7.39¢ 21.86 ¢
« Modification gain on right of use assets =g (45.04) ¢
< Payment of ease laibilities (169.89) r (220.62) ¢
Closing balance 275.23 ¢ 437.73 ¢
1

4 Details regarding the contractual maturities of lease liabilities as at March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022 on an undiscounted basis is as follows:

¢ Rupees in Lakhs
¢ March3, zozzr_.

¢ Particulars March 31, 2023

¢ Repayable on demand/due

27523 e
¢ Lessthan one year e 445,127
¢ One to five years e =il
¢ More than five years ¢ sl
¢ Jotal 275.23 ¢ 445.12

‘ The Company does not face a significant liquidity risk with regard to its lease liabilities as the current assets are sufficient to meet the obligations related
to lease liabilities as and when they fall due.
L9

¢ Following amount has been recognised in statement of profit and loss:

¢ Rupeesin falfakns
March 31, 2023 < ¢March 31, 2022

{ Particulars

(¢ Amortisation on right to use asset

116.07 116.07 ¢

¢ Interest on lease liability 7.39¢ 21.86
| Expenses related to short term/low value lease (included under other expenses) 3.24¢ 4.95 .
Total 126.70 142.88 ¢

Note : For right of use assets refer note no.4 above,
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16 Provisions ¢

r Rupees in Lakhs

« Particulars

v March31,2023 ¢ March 31, 2022

¢ Non-current:
« Provision for gratuity [Refer note no.39{bj]

573 ¢ 43.97 7
¢ Provision for leave encashment 51.49¢ 78.26 ¢
¢ Provision for periodic maintenance 5,720.76 ¢ 335212 ¢
¢ Total 5,777.98 ¢ 3,474.35¢(
¢ Current:

« Provision for variable performance pay 54,61+ 42717
¢ Provision for superannuation 1271 1.20¢
« Provision for leave encashment 4533 ¢ 45.90 ¢
¢ Provision for periodic maintenance 5,000.00 ¢ 7,452.50 ¢

¥ Total 5,101.21 ¢ 7,542.31¢

¥ Total 10,879.19 < 11,016.66 ¢

( Note:

¢ a) Provision for periodic maintena nce (overlay activities)

 The Company has contractual obligation to maintain, replace or restore infrastructure, except for an
¥ measured at the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the obligation at the balance shees
¢ the beejpning nt the vgacwhinki thneuvdnay s esumated to be carried out. The provisions accordingly

¢ carried out over the balance period, the company has straight-lined the re-estimated project cost to com
¢ value of such straight-lined projected cost which is shown under non-current provision as on balance sheet date. Based on revised

‘cost, the excess provision which is no longer required is reversed during the year.

< b) Movement of provision for periodic maintenance

y enhancement element. Cost of such obligation is

t date and recognized/spgseda over'the periods unto
for the second periodic maintenance has been
ities have been completed during the FY 2013-14

plete and accordingly made provision for present

estimation of project

¥ _Rupees in Lakhs
¢ Particulars " March 31, 2023 " March 31, 2022
Non-current . Current ¢ Non-current ¢ Current

( Opening Balance 3,352.12 ¢ 7,452.50 ¢ 1,497.72 ¢ 8,716.56
 Accretion during the year 2,368.64 ¢ L 1,854.40 ¢ - 7

( Excess provision reversed during the year -r (1,445.34) ¢ 4 ai: off

¢ Utilised/Reversed during the year - ¢ (1,007.16) * L (1,264.06)¢
 Closing Balance 5,720,76 ¢ 5,000.00 © 3,352,12 7 7,452.50 ©

17 tTrade payables

( Rupees in Lakhs

« Particulars

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

¢ Current:
¢ Carried at amortised cost:
¢ Dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises [Refer Notes (a) below]

144.08 v 156.03 ¥

« Dues of creditors otherthan micro enterprises and small enterprises

< Payable to related parties [Refer note no.40 below] 1,790.48 ¢ 1,671.86 7

¢ Dues to others 215.69 ¢ 173.19 ¢
¢ Jotal 2,150.25 ¢ 2,001.08 ¢
¢ Notes:
¢ @) Details of dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises

 Dues to related parties [Refer note no.40] 117.93 ¢ 89.30 ¢

« Dues to others 26.15¢ 66.73 1

« Total

144,08 ¢ 156.03 ¢
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b) Trade payables ageing analysis ¢
Trade payable ageing as at March 31,2023 ¢

5 Rupees in Lakhs
¢ Particulars Amount not Outstanding for following periods from due date of paymenty
Due ¢ <1year ¢ 1-2 years ¢ 2-3years >3 years, Total ¢
¢ Total outstanding dues of 0.85 ¥ 136.95‘ 4.58 - 1.70, 144.08 ¢
< micro enterprises and small
 enterprises [MSME]
¢ Total outstanding dues of 53.88 ¢ 1,943.84 ? 1.51 3.55¢ 339 2,006.17 ¢
¢ creditors other than MSME
< Disputed dues of MSME =% o - L g N =
¢ Disputed dues of creditors it < =i -y = 2
< other than MSME
Total 54.73 ¢ 2,080.79 « 6.09 3.55¢ 5.09 ¢ 2,150,25
Trade payable ageing as at March 31, 2022 Rupees in Lakhs
Particulars Amount not Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Due < 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years >3 years Total
Total outstanding dues of 532 ¢ 150.71 _ - - - 156.03 ¢
micro enterprises and small
enterprises [MSME]
Total outstanding dues of 43.76 ¢ 1,718.24 | 32.75 29.74, 20.56 ¢ 1,845.05 ¢
creditors other than MSME
Disputed dues of MSME £ - = :: - -
Disputed dues of creditors - - - - " -
other than MSME
Total 49.08 ¢ 1,868.95 , 32.75¢ 29.74 ¢ 20.56 2,001.08 «

e e e o

any claim for interest from any supplier under the said Act,

-

¢} The Management is in continuous process of obtaining confirmations from its vendors regarding their registrations under the provisions of the Micro,
Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (MSMED Act). Under the MSMED Act, 2006 which came into force with effect from October 2,
2006, certain disclosures are required to be made relating to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises. On the basis of inform
the company, the following disclosures are made for the amounts due to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises.
impact of interest, if any, that may be payable in accordance with the provision of the Act are not expected to be

ation and records available with
Further, in view of the management, the
material. The Company has not received

" Rug in Lakhs
¢ Particulars ¢ March31,2023 . March 31, 2022
¢ The principal amount due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of 144.08r 156.03 -
< each accounting year
¢, The interest amount due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of - -
( each accounting year
¢ The amount of interest paid by the buyer under MSMED Act, 2006 - -
¢ Amounts of the payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day during each - -
¢ accounting year
¢ The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment - -
¢ (which has been paid but beyond the appointed day during the year) but without
« adding the interest specified under the MSMED Act, 2006)
¢ The amount of interest accrued but not accounted and remaining unpaid at the end of 491 ¢ 381y

¢ accounting year; and
¢ The amount of further interest due and payable even in the succeeding year, until such

¢ date when the interest dues as above are actually paid to the small enterprise, for the
¢ purpose of disallowance as a deductible expenditure under section 23.

(d) The Company is in the process of reconciling the outstanding balances with vendors and any changes in the balance upon reconciliation shall be given
< effect in the ensuing year and the management is of the opinion that there will not be any significant effect on such reconciliaiton.

«€) The fair value of Trade payables is not materially different from the carrying value presented,
« f) Terms and conditions of the above financial liabilities:
_Trade payables are non-interest bearing and are normally settled on 60 days terms.
<
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18 ¢ Other financial liabilities

“ Rupees in Lakhs
¢ Particulars { March 31, 2023 ¢ March 31, 2022

¢ Current
< Other financial current liabilities at amortized cost
¢ Interest accrued but not due on debt

B36.32¢ 1,023.61,
¢ Total

836.32 « 1,023.61¢

{ Break-up of financial liabilities 1 Rupees in Lakhs
¢ Particulars March 31, 2023 ¢ March 31, 2022 ,

¢ Financial liabilities carried at amortised cost

« Borrowings 19,350.22 . 23,676.01 ¢
 Lease liability 27523 ¢ 437.73 ¢
¢ Liability component of preference share capital 3,105.21¢ 2,805.51¢
¢ Trade payables 2,150.25 ¢ 2,001.08¢
¢ Interest accrued but not due on debt 836.32¢ 1,023.61¢
< Total 25,717.23 ¢ 29,943.941
19 ¢ Other liabilities
Rupees in Lakhs ¢
© Particulars

March 31, 2023 ¢ March 31, 2022

i Non-current:
{ Deferred contract revenue under service concession arrangement [Refer note (a) below]

483,18 ¢ 295,94 1
{ Total 483.18 ¢ 295,94 «
¢ Current:
¢ Deferred contract revenue under service concession arrangement [Refer note (a) below] 308.77 ¢ 554.02 ¢
( Statutory dues 1,067.53 ¢ 46.62 »
1 Total 1,376.30 1 600.64 ¢
{ Total 1,859.48 ¢ 896.58 7
< Notes:

¢ a) Deferred contract revenue represents amount received. fram_custnroeraseperute s

“yeany annuiy supulated under the service concession
<arrangements to recognise revenue once the periodic maintenance services is completed and p

erformance obligations are achieved.
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20 Income Tax .

« The major components of income tax expense

< 20.01 Income tax expense in the statement of profit and loss comprises for the year:

i« Rupees in Lakhs
¢ Particulars v March 31,2023 ¢ March 31, 2022

¢ Profit or loss section
« Current Tax [Refer note no.36 below]

¢ Deferred Tax [Refer note no.20.04 below]
¢ Income tax for earlier years
V¥ Tax expense / (credit) to Statement of Profit and Loss

932.70 v
=
#2 K

343.81;
8y

932.70 (
¢ Other comprehensive income section {OC

¢ Deferred tax related to items recognised in OCI during in the year:

« Re-measurement gains {losses) on defined benefit plans -y

343.81¢

Y

\ Tax expense / (credit) to Other Comprehensive Income -0

L3

\ Tax expense / (credit) to Total Comprehensive Income 932.70

343.81 «

+ 20.02 Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by India’s domestic tax rate for the year:

< Rupees in Lakhs

v Particulars March 31,2023 1 March 31,2022
« Profit before tax (PBT) 5327.82 ¢ 1,972.01 ¢
¢ Applicable tax rate 29.12% ¢ 29.12% ¥
¢ Tax effect of income / (loss) (a) 1,551.46 ¢ 574.25 ¢
{ Adjustments:
1 Tax effect on non-taxable income - ¢ {0.15)¢
1 Tax effect on non-deductible expenses 10.86 ¢ (33.37) ¢
¢ Deduction under section 80IA [Refer note n0.20.04(a) below] (947.61)¢ (370.81)¢
« Impact of minimum alternate tax credit 166.95 (332.45) ¢
(b) (769.80)¢ (736.78) ¢
{c)=(a+b) 781.66 ¢ {162.53) ¢
( Deferred tax asset /(liability) is not recognised as the same will be (d) 151.04¢ 506.34 ¢
© reversed during section 80IA period [Refer note no.20.04 below]
¢ Tax expense/(credit) for the year (e)={c+d) 932.70 v 343.81 ¢
¢ Income tax for earlier years (f) - 4
« Tax expense / (credit) to Statement of Profit and Loss (g)=(e-f) 932,701 343.81 ¢
¢ Effective tax rate for the year (e)/PBT 17.51% ¢ 17.43% ¢

g 20.03 Provision for Income tax / Non-current tax assets

¢ _Rupees in Lakhs

¢ Particulars

« March 31,2023  March 31, 2022

¢ Net current income tax asset/ (liability) at the beginning 598.28 ¢ 407.06 ¢

¢ Current tax payable for the year 932.70 ¢ 34381¢

¢ Current taxes (paid)/refund (net) (442.99)¢ (152.591 1,

¢ Net current income tax asset/ (k=" #dulty) &t the end * 1,087.99¢ 598.28 ¢
_* - refer note no.36
¢ The details of income tax assets and income tax liabilities
© Provision for Income tax (net) 1,227.09 ¢ 737.38 ¢
¢ Income tax assets (net) b 13 (139.10) ¢
77 wet current income tax asset/ (Hability) at the end 1,087.99 ¢ 598.28
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20 Income Tax

20.04 Major components of deferred tax assets and liabilities +

rl!upees in Lakhs

Particulars x As at ¢ For the year ended As at For the year ended As at
April 01, 2021 March 31, 2022 < March 31, 2022 March31,2023 ¥  March 31, 2023 g
« Deferred tax liability
- Service concession assets 2,583.52¢ (368.20) v 2,21532 o 661.68 r 2,877.00
¢ Right of use assets 202.80, (169.00) ¢ 33.80 « (33.80)r =¥
« Borrowings 13.91¢ (4.30) ¢ 9.61 ¢ (3.56) ¢ 6.05 1
i Equity Component of preference shares 1,054.42¢ = T 1,054.42 s - r 1,054.42 +
¢ Fair value of investments through profit 0.01¢ (0.01) . - ¢ -t -
s orloss
. Total 3,854.66 ¢ (541.51) 3,313.15 624.32 ¢ 3,937.47
« Deferred tax asset
¢ Property, plant and equipments 2169 ¢ (3.07)¢ 18.62 v (3.34) + 15.28 ¢
« Right of use lease liability 222.48 ¢ (181.80) 40.68 ¢ (40.68) ¢ 1
¢ Liability portion of preference shares 496,70 ¢ 78.85 ¢ 575.55¢ 87.27 ¢ 662.82 ¢
¢ Loans 97.25 ¢ (97.25)¢ - - -7
¢ Interest accrued on Loan to related Parties 327.29 % 138.23 ¢ 465.52 « 209.55 ¢ 675.07 ¢
¢ Fair value of investments / receivables through 123.02¢ 237.91¢ 36093 ¢ 423,99 ¢ 784.92 ¢
¢ profit or loss
« Provision for major maintenance 1,536.94¢ (217.13) ¢ 1,319.81¢ 121927 1,441.73 ¢
« Provision for leave encashment 38.95¢ (2.79) ¢ 36.16 1 (7.97)¢ 28.197
' Provision for gratuity 11.09 ¢ 171 ¢ £ 12.807 (11.13)¢ 1677
¢ Provision for bonus 11.34 ¢ 10.17 ¢ 21.51 ¢ (4.25)¢ 17.26 ¢
“ Total 2,886.75 ¢ [35.17]( 2,851.58 « 775.36 ¢ 3,626.94 ¢
« Net deferred tax (assets) / liability 967.91¢ (506.34) v 461.57 « (151.04) 310.53 ¢
¢ Deferred tax asset/(liability) not (967.91) ¥ 506.34 © (461.57) ¢ 151.04 ¢ (310.53) ¢
¢ recognised [Refer note (a) below]
¢ Net deferred tax (assets) / liability - - ¢ - v - ¢ e
¢ Note:

( a) The Company, being Infrastructure Company, enjoys the benefit of tax holiday period for 10 years out of first 20

¢ of operations, the Company has incurred losses and hence had not claimed the benefit of tax holiday period. The Managemen

years of operations. In initial years

t expects that all

¢« holiday period and resulting in insignificant deferred tax asset as at the end of the Section 80IA tax holiday period which incidentally is also the end of
¢ the project period. Accordingly, the company has not recognised the resulting deferred tax liability/asset that is expected to reverse during the tax

¢ holiday period.

¢ 20.05 The unused business loss and allowances is allowable in future period against taxable profit Rs. Nil

¢ 20.06 The Company offsets tax assets and liabilities if and only if it has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets and current tax liabilities and

the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority.
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21 Revenue from operations s
© Rupees in Lakhs

¢ Particulars March 31,2023¢  March 31, 202

¢ Operations and maintenance income 3,426.78 ¢ 360245 7

¢ Finance income on financial assets 2,350.60 2,703.44 ¢

{ Total 5,777.38 _ 6,305.89 ©
Notes:

(a) Effective April 1, 2018, the Company adopted Ind AS 115 “ Revenue from Contracts with Customers” using the cumulative catch-up transition method,
< applied to contracts that were not completed as of April 1, 2018. In accordance with the cumulative catch-up transition method, the comparatives have
¢ not been retrospectively adjusted.

¢ In the Service Concession agreement the Company has applied the guidance in Ind AS 115, by applying the revenue recognition criteria for each distinct
« performance obligation. The arrangement with the grantor generally meets the criteria for considering regular maintenance and periodic maintenance
( services as two distinct performance obligations. For allocating the transaction price, the Company has meatiired the revenue in respect of each
{ performance obligation of the contract at its relative standalone price using the expected cost plus margin approach. For periodical maintenance
¢« (overlays) and related services, the performance obligations are satisfied only when the services are rendered since the customer generally obtains the
¢ control of the work as it progresses though the company accounts for the provision for periodic maintenance as a best estimate is recognised and
¢ measured over the period of time in terms of Ind AS 37.

v b) Disaggregate revenue information for the year ended March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022:

¢ The Company has presented disaggregated revenue from contracts with customers (under service concession arrangements) for the year ended March
« 31, 2023 by offerings and is of the opinion that, this disaggregation best depicts the nature, amount, timing of revenues and cash flows that are affected
« by the industry markets and other ecanomic factors.

Rupees in Lakhsy

« Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 r
¢ Revenue by offering
¢ Operations and maintenance 3426.78 ¢ 3,602.45¢
¢ Financial asset 2,350.60 ¢ 2,703.44¢
Total 5,777.38 v 6,305.89

¢ The Company has not identified any disaggregated revenues based on contract types.

¥ ¢) Performance obligations:
¢ Revenue from periodic maintenance (overlay) are recognised as per the service concession arrangements,

r The performance obligation provides the aggregate amount of transaction that is pending to be performed and transaction price yet to be recognised as
¢ at end of the reporting period. The Company has applied the practical expedient as given in Ind AS 115 as the performance obligation on periodic

« Assets and liabilities under service concession arrangements on which performance obligation is not satisfied are classified as contract assets and contract
¢ liabilities respectively. Refer note nos.7 and 19 above.
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22 Other income <

“Rupees in Lakhs

Particulars
o

¢« March 31, 2023

1 March 31, 2022

{ Interest Income on Bank Deposit and others

125.21¢ 84.06 ¥
¢ Interest on loan to related parties 348137, 2186585 .
¢ Reversal of modification loss on Loan to e=indo parues - € 366.95 v
«Madification gain on service concession asset 3,432.90¢ ¢
< Modification gain on right of use assets - ¢ 45.04 ¥
< Profit on sale of Investments - f 0.14 ¢
< Profit on sale of property plant and equipment 3.78¢ -
¢ Reversal of excess provision for leave encashment = 13.07 ¢
{ Excess provision written back* 1,471.54¢ =
< Scrap Sale 6.28¢ e
{Insurance claim received - ¢ 394.53 ¢
. Other non-operating income 0.01¢ 0.07 %
c Total 8,521.09 ¢ 4,069.95 «
« -includes reversal of excess provision for periodic maintenance no longer required Rs.1,445.35 Lakhs [March 31, 2022 : Rs.Nil]

< 23 Operating expenses

< Particulars

March 31, 2023 _

Rupees in Lakhs v
March 31, 2022,

¢ Sub-contracting expenses

1,664.25 ¢ 1,947.01y
Total 1,664.25 ¢ 1,947.01¢
« Details of sub-contracting expenses
( Highway maintenance expenses 564.14 « 588.78+¢
¢ Toll/Highway management services 892.95¢ 94.17¢
¢ Periodic maintenance expenses 1,007.16 ¢ 1,264.06 ¢
¢ Concession fee [Re.1, (March 31, 2022 : Re.1)] = z
¢ Total 1,664.25 1,947.01¢

¢ 24 Employee benefit expenses

.~ Rupees in Lakhs
¢Particulars March 31, 2023 ¢ March 31, 2|:!22<
¢ Salaries, perquisites & allowance 499,93 634.24¢
¢ Contribution to provident and other funds 42,40« 40.69 f
¢ Gratuity expense 573¢ 5397
¢ Staff welfare expenses 9.87¢ 7.50 ©
< Total 557.93 ¢ 687.82
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25 Finance costs ¢

U Rupees in Lakhs

Particulars
-

¢ March 31,2023 | March 31, 2022

¢ Interest measured at amortised cost
¢ Interest on debts and borrowings

1,933.43¢ 2,341.00 v
¢ Interest others 2,186.76 ¢ 1,640.48 ¢
« Other borrowing cost 112.12¢ 172.02 ¢
¢ Total 4,232.31¢ 4,153.50
¢ Details of finance cost (Interest measured at amortised cost)
< Interest on debts and borrowings

¢ Interest on debentures 1,933.43 . 2,341.00
( Interest others

¢ Unwinding interest on liability portion of preference shares 299.70¢ 270.77 «

( Interest loss on modification of Loan to related parties 1,383.22« 1,056.28 ©

¢ Unwinding Interest on periodic maintenance provision 496.23 ¢ 291.56 ¢

{ Interest on lease liability 7.39¢ 21.87 ¢

+ Interest on delay in payment of statutory dues 0.22 ¢ N
« Other borrowing cost

¢ Madification charge on service concession asset L 65.84 7

tBank and other finance charges 112,12 ¢ 106.18 ¢
¢ Total 4,232.31 ¢ 4,153.50 '

« 26 Depreciation and amortization expense

(Rupees in Lakhs

« Particulars March 31, 2023 ¢ March 31, 2022
-
« Depreciation of property, plant and equipment [Refer note no.2] 17.57¢ 12.09 ¢
¢ Amortization of intangible assets 2.79 0.16 ¢
¢ Amortization of right of use assets [Refer note no.4] 116.07 ¢ 116.07 ¢

( Total

136.43 ( 128.32 ¢
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27 Other expenses ¢

Rupees in Lakhs ¢
March 31,2023 ¢« March 31, 2022¢

Particulars ¢

¢ Consumption of Stores and Spares

81.54 16.32 ¢
¢ Utility Expenses (including Electricity charges) 104.02 ¢ 88.21«
1 Rent 324¢ 4.95¢
¢ License fee and Trademark fee 20.45¢ 21.19¢
< Rates and taxes 0.497 1.39¢
¢ Insurance 124877 118.64,
« Repairs and maintenance
¢ - Plant and Machinery 2.63¢ 0.05¢
« - Others 72.32¢ 56.74¢
¢ Safety expense 0.21¢ 2.98¢
¢ Vehicle running expense 28.57¢ 29.04 ¢
< Travelling and conveyance 65.27¢ 36.29¢
¢ Communication costs 8.57y¢ 11.39¢
€ Printing and stationery 122 ¢ 2.63¢
< Legal and professional fees 24781 ¢ 18235 ¢
¢ Manpower outsourcing 51.57¢ 43.98¢
¢ Directors’ sitting fees 3.13¢ 3.13¢
¢« Payment to auditors [Refer note no, (a) below] 12.75¢ B.72¢
¢ Advertisement and business promotion 261, 1.48¢
¢ Advances written off 32.77, -

¢ Staff recruitment and training cost 0.08 ¢

¢ Bank charges 0.44 ¢ 0.35r{
¢ Security Charges 21.96¢ 15.52¢
¢ Corporate Social responsibility Expenses 26.91¢ 1547 ¢
¢ Fair value loss/provision on financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss [Refer note 1,456.00 ¢ 817.01¢
¢ no.6(b)]
. General expenses 8.30¢ 9.35¢
Total 2,379.73 ¢ 1,487.18«¢
f Notes:
¢ a) Details of payment to auditors
< Statutory audit fee (including fee for limited review, interim financial reporting) 5.85 ¢ 6.90v
{ Tax audit fee 1.00 ¢ 1187
{ Certification charges 5.90 ¢ 0.64 ¢
( Total 12.75 ¢ 8.72¢

b) Fair value loss/provision on financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss:

¢ Amount receivable towards sale of compulsorily convertible debentures provided for during the year [Refer 1,456.00 ¢ 817.00¢
« note no.6(b)]

¢ Investment in mutual funds - ¢ 0.01°
¢ Total 1,456.00 < 817.01 ¢

< 28 Earning per share (EPS)
« Basic EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit for the year attributable to equity holders of the parent by the weighted average number of Equity

¢shares outstanding during the year. There is no dilutive potential ordinary shares as at March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022. Thus, diluted EPS equals basic
f
EPS.

! The following reflects the income and share data used in the basic and diluted EPS computations:

“Particulars March 31, 2023 < March 31, 2022
=
¢ ) Nominal value of Equity shares (in Rupees per share) 10.00¢ 10.00¢
1 b) Weighted average number of Equity shares at the year end (in Nos) 13,80,00,000 ¢ 13,80,00,000 ¢
¢ €] Profit attributable to equity holders of the Company for basic earnings (Rupees in Lakhs) 4,395.12¢ 1,628.20¢

¢ d) Basic/Diluted Earning per share of Rs 10/- each (in Rs.) [(c)/(b)] 3.18¢ 1.18¢
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29 Disclosures on Financial Instruments

 This section gives an overview of the significance of financial instruments for the Company and provides additional information on balance sheet items that
¢’contain financial instruments.

¢ The details of significant accounting policies, including the criteria for recognition, the basis of measurement and the basis on which income and eXpenses
carerecognised in respect of each class of financial asset, financial liability and equity instrument are disclosed in Notes to the financial statements,

(29.01 Financial instruments by category

« Financial instruments comprise financial assets and financial liabilities.

! The carrying value and fair value of financial instruments by categories are as follows " _Rupees in Lakhs
Refer As at March 31, 2023 r As at March 31, 2022 «
¥ Particulars note no. Amortised cost Fair value o Fairvalue - Amortised cost Fair value ¢ Fairvalue ¢
A 1 through profit  through oci ¥ through profit through 0CI
or loss or loss

¢« Financial assets:

¢ Loans to group companies 75 26,914.01 - - 27,105.47 ¢ x =

< Security deposit T 6 0.31, - ' - 0.42 ¢ - -

¢ Receivable under service ‘6 12,562.35 ¢ - - 12,742.73 ¢ - -

¢ concession

¢ Cash and cash equivalents ¢ 10 5,567.32¢ - . 4,122.47 ¢ - -
¢ Other bank balances (including  +11 2,496.06 ¢ - - 1,976.57 ¢ - -

1 interest accrued)

¢ Other financial assets 25 10,840.83 ¢ < o 10,516.61 ¢ : :
¢ Total 58,380.88 ¢ - ¢ A 56,464.27 ¢ .Y -7
¢ Financial liabilities:
« Borrowings (including interest 14 ¢ 20,186.54 . - - 24,699.62 ¢ - -

¢ accrued)

¢ Liability component of 14 ¢ 3,105.21 - - 2,805.51¢ = &

¢ preference share capital

¢ Trade payables 17 ¢ 2,150.25 - - 2,001.08 ¢ - -

¢ Lease liability 15¢ 275.23 - - 437.73 ¢ - -

¢ Other financial liabilities 18 ¢ = = = o # 2
¢ Total 25,717.23 ¢ - ¢ - 29,943.94 1 - - ¥

¢ Fair values
€ The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair values:
- The fair values of the unquoted mutual funds are based on NAV available at the reporting date.

¢ 29.02 Fair value hierarchy
¢ The Company held the following assets and liabilities measured at fair value. The Company uses the following hierarchy for determining and
¢ disclosing the fair value of assets and liabilities by valuation technique

O levell: quoted (unadjusted) prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities;
¢ Level 2:  valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is directly or indirectly
observable; and

¢ Level3:  valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is unobservable,




GMR POCHANPALLI EXPRESSWAYS LIMITED
CIN - Ud5200KA2005PLC049327

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023

¢ a) The following table presents fair value hierarchy of assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis as of March 31,

2023:
« Rupees in Lakhs
{ Particulars ¢ Total v level1 * Level2 * Level 3
¢ Assets measured at fair value through profit or loss: iy c - - (f -
( Liabilities measured at fair value through profit or loss: ‘ - iz ¢ - < -
b) The following tahle presents fair value hierarchy of assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis as of March 31, 2022;
Rupees in Lakhs
Particulars Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
< Assets measured at fair value through profit or loss:

¢ Liabilities measured at fair valye through profit or loss:

¢ During the year ended March 31, 2023 and March 3

1, 2022 there were no Assets/Liabilities measured at fair value through profit or loss and no
< transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 fair value measu

rements, and no transfers into and out of Leve| 3 fair value measurements.
€ The Board of Directors considers the fair value of all other financial assets and liabilities to approximate their carrying value at the balance sheet date,

¢ In view of all financial assets and liabilities are carried at amortised cost,

there are no financial assets and liabilities to be fair valued under the fair
¢ value hierarchy.

¢ 30 Financial risk management

¢ Financial Risk Factors

r The Company's principal financial liabilities, comprise borrowings,
¢ Company's operations. The Company's principal financial assets is
¢ bank balance.

trade and other payables. The main purpose of these financial liabilities is to finance the
Loan receivables, Receivable under SCA, Cash and Cash equivalents, Investment and other

r In the course of its business, the Company's exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity
( management of these risks. The Company's senior management is supported by audit committee th
¢ risk governance framework for the Company. The Company's senior management ensure that
¢ appropriate policies and procedures and that financial risks are identified, measured and mana
{ objectives. The risk management policy is approved by the Board of Directors,

risk. The company's senior management oversees the
at advises on financial risks and the appropriate financial
the company's financial risk activities are governed by
ged in accordance with the company’s policies and risk
The risk management frame work aims to :

¢ i) create a stable business planning environment by reducing the impact of currency and interest rate fluctuation on the Company's business plans,

¢ ii) achieve greater predictability to earnings by determining the financial value of the expected earnings in advance.

¢ 30.01 Market risk
© Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument
¢ comprises three types of risk: interest rate risk,
¢ include lpans and borrowings, deposits, and deri
¢ at March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022.

will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market risk
currency risk and price risk, such as equity price risk. Financial instruments affected by market risk
vative financial instruments. The sensitivity analysis in the following sections relate to the position as

¢ The analysis excludes the impact of movements in market variables on: the car
¢ Provisions.

¢ The following assumptions have been made in calculating the sensitivity analysis.

© The sensitivity of the relevant profit or loss item is the effect of the assumed changes in respective market risks. Th
¢ and financial liabilities held at March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022,

rying values of gratuity and other post-retirement obligations,

is is based on the financial assets
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< Interest rate risk

« Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates.

< The Company does not have exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates in view of the Company's long-term debt obligations with fixed

{ interest rates. Borrowings at fixed rates expose the Company to fair value interest rate risk. In respect of deployment of funds by the comnapu.as ...

€ loans/depasits to the related parties the inta=77vst'rate Tisk nas been considered by the company by fixing the terms for those loans for a period not
( exceeding one year which may be renewed with rates reflecting current market scenario.

The Company analyses its interest rate exposure on a dynamic basis. The Company's policy is to manage its interest cost using only interest free/
fixed rate debts from related parties.

-

Interest rate sensitivity:

-

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in interest rates on that portien of loans and borrowings affected.
50 basis points represents management’s assessment of reasonably possible change in interest rate. With all other variables held constant, the
Company’s profit/{loss) before tax is affacted through the impact interest rate of borrowings is as follows:

A

<

Rupees in Lakhs

i Particulars Type of currency Increase/ Effect on profit before tax ¢ Effect on total equityr
< decrease in March 31, March 31, 2022 March 31, March 31, 2022
basis points 2023 ¢ < 2023 ¢ ‘
¢ Increase of profit INR {+)50 ¢ 80.79 ¢ 103.06 ¢ 80.79 103.06 «
¢ Decrease of profit INR « [-)50 (80.79) . (1{)3,06}r {80.79) . (103.08) ,

« 30.02 Commodity price risk
. The Company is affected by the price volatility of certain commodities which is moderated by optimising the procurement for operating activities

which require continuous procurement of road operation and maintenance materials. Therefore the Company monitors its purchases closely to
optimise the price.

¢ 30.03 Credit risk
¢ Credit risk is the risk that counterparty will not mest its obligations under a financial instrument or customer contract, leading to a financial loss.
(¢ Financial instruments that are subject to credit risk and concentration thereof principally consist of receivables under concession agreement/other
¢ receivables, loans, investments, cash and cash equivalents provided by the Company. The carrying value of financial assets represents the maximum
© credit risk, which may be affected by the changes in the credit risk of the counter parties.
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30.04 Limgguldhty risk
¢ Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will not be able to meet its financial obli

¢ liquidity is to ensure that it will always have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities
< risking damage to the Company’s reputation

gations as they fall due. The Company's approach to managing
when they become due without incurring unacceptable losses or
€ Prudent liguidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash and marketable securities,
< amount of committed credit facilities and the ability to close out market positions. The Company's
¢ funding as well as settlement management,

the availability of funding through an adeguate
treasury department is responsible for liquidity,

¢ Management monitors rolling farecasts of the Company's liquidity reserve on the basis of expected cash flow. This is generally carried out at by the
¢ Company in accordance with practice and limits set by the Company. In addition, the Company’s liquidity management policy involves projecting
( cash flows in major currencies and considering the level of liquid assets necessary to meet these; monitoring balance sheat liquidity ratios against

Cinternal and external regulatory requirements; and maintaining debt financing plans. The Company also issues preference shares to the parent
+ company/ group companies from time to time to ensure a liquidity balance,

¢ The Company's principal sources of liquidity are cash and cash equivalents and the cash flow that is

generated from operations. The Company
¢ believes that the working capital is sufficient to meet its current requirements,

«As at March 31, 2023, the Company had a working capital of Rs.36,753.95 Lakhs including cash and cash equivalents of Rs.5,567.32 Lakhs. As at
¢ March 31, 2022, the Company had a working capital of Rs.36,349.86 Lakhs including cash and cash equivalents of Rs.4,122.47 Lakhs.

¥ The following are the contractual maturities of non-derivative financial liabilities, including the estimated interest payment on an undiscounted basis
« which therefore differs from both carrying value and fair value. Floating rate interest is estimated using the prevailing interest rate at the year end.

¢ Financial Liabilities

 Rupees in Lakhs
o Particulars : Financial Totalamount Repayableon Due within lyear Due between 'Due afters years
liabilities * payable ¢ demand/not L 1to5years
carrying value due
As at March 31, 2023 p
-Brrawiges 159,350.22¢ 19,371.00 ¢ - 4,566.00 14,805.00 -
Lease liability « 275.23¢ 275.23 ¢ 27523 - = =
Interest accrued on debt < 836.32¢ 836.32¢ - 836.32 - -
Preference shares « 3,105.21¢ 4,450.00 ¢ - - 4,450.00 -
Trade payable- 2,150.25° 2,150.25¢ 54.73 2,080.79 14.73 -
Other financial liabilities® - ¢ -« - - - -
Total « 25,717.23 ¢ 27,082.80 ¢ 329.96 7,483.11 19,269.73 -
« Asat March 31, 2022
< Borrowings 23,676.01¢ 23,709.00 - 4,338.00 19,371.00 -
% Lease liability 437.73 ¢ 445.12 - 445,12 - -
< Interest accrued on debt 1,023.61¢ 1,023.61 - 1,023.61 - -
¥ Preference shares 2,805,517 4,450.00 - - 4,450,00 -
« Trade payable 2,001.08 % 2,001.08 49.08 1,868.95 83.05 -
¢ Other financial liabilities - ~ = = & =
« Total 25,943.94 31,628.81 49.08 7,675.68 23,904.05 -

4 Excessive risk concentration
«The Company needs to assess the risks in relation to excessive risk concentration and the measures adopted by the Company to mitigate such risks.

¢ Concentrations arise when a number of counterparties are engaged in similar business activities, or activities in the same geographical region, or
¢ have economic features that would cause their ability to meet contractual obligations to be similarly affected by changes in economic, political or
« other conditions. Concentrations indicate the relative sensitivity of the company's performance to developments affecting a particular industry.

< In order to avoid excessive concentrations of risk, the cqmnam(_‘smlicies.aw.mm'arkarm..indeﬂpeanc“éume‘uhé‘s to tocus on the maintenance of a

o wodimndfigbnaatis diantd tdncentratioris of credit risks are controlled and managed accordingly. Selective hedging is used within the company
« to manage risk concentrations at both the relationship ars’ ) ifaudtry levels.




GMR POCHANPALLLEMBWYIESSWAYS LIMITED
CIN - U45200KA2005PLC049327

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023

30.05 Capital management v
¢ The Company's capital management is intended ta rreate wRlesdrsdbnenbriers oy rdcilifating the meeting of long term and short term goals of the
¢ Company.

¢ For the purpose of the Company’s capital management, capital includes issued equity capital, Preference Share and all other equity reserves
¢ attributable to the equity holders of the parent. The primary objective of the Company’s capital Mmanagement is to maximise the shareholder value.

© The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in light of changes in economic conditions and the requirements of the financial
i covenants. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders
¢ orissue new shares. The Company includes within net debt, borrowings, trade and other payables, less cash and cash equivalents.
§ The Company menitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is total debt divided by total capital plus total debt.
Rupees in Lakhs
Particulars March 31, r March 31, 2022
v T 2023
¢ Debt - External long term borrowings (a) 20,186.54 24,699.62
1 Capital Components
¢ Equity Share Capital 13,800.00 ¢ 13,800.00 "_
¢ Other equity 16,053.08, 11,647.751
1 Liability component of preference share capital 3,105.21¢ 2,805,511
¢ Total Capital (b) 32,958.29 1 28,253.26 ¢
¢ Capital and debt {a+b) 53,144;2.3‘ _.‘a_Z"Qéis=r
, Gearingratio (%) (a)/(a+h) 37.98% 46.64% 7

In order to achieve this overall oblective. tha.l‘numapu’s,rni\m:m-.r.mmgement, amongst other things, aims to ensure that it meets financial covenants
¢ attached to the interest-bearing loans and borrowings that define capital structure requirements. Breaches in meeting the financial covenants would

permit the bank to immediately call loans and borrowings. There have been no breaches in the financial covenants of any interest-bearing loans and
¢ borrowing in the current period.

« Nochanges were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the year ended March 31,2023 and March 31, 2022,

{This Space has been intentionally left blank)




GMR POCHANPALLI EXPRESSWAYS LIMITED
CIN - U45200KA2005PLC049327

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023

< 31 Contingent liabilities and commitments

" Rug in Lakhs
< Particulars t + March31,2023 March 31, 2022

¢a.  Contingent Liabilities (to the extent not provided for)

“Claims against the company not acknowledged as debt:

€ i. Penalty levied by National Highways Authority of India {net of amount paid under protest) [Refer note
¢ no.32 below]

¢ ii. Income tax demand of Rs.132.61 Lakhs for the AY 2020-21 issued by the Income tax department vide 132.61
¢ Assessment Order dated September 21, 2022 under section 143(3} of the Income tax Act, 1961 by non
¥ grant of set off of brought forward loss and non considering deduction under section 80G and section
¥ 80IA. The Company has filed an appeal before the CIT(Appeals), Bengaluru against the demand and
« management is confident of getting a favourable order.
U iii. Defaults in Tax Deducted at Source during FY 2020-21 and earlier years as per TRACES login
©b. « Capital Commitments

¢ Deposit payable by the Company in terms of Deed of Adherence with Dehli International Airport Limited
“(DIAL)

¢ ~Other Commitments
¢ The Company has provided an undertaking to ICICI Bank Limited to deposit the amount received against - 3,147.85

* 53.93

{ completion of First Periodic Maintenance of the Project which was subsequently enhanced by CAG to Rs.2,344.00 Lakhs. NHAI had subsequently deducted

< Rs.1,078.62 Lakhs as penalty and damages while releasing 18th Annuity in March 2018 and from 22nd Annuity an amount of Rs_1 43048 2%kriatith,

< further deduction of an amount of Rs.197.90 Lakhs [ rroni 25th Annuity towards non-fulfilment of 0&M Obligations and non-curing of deficiencies in the
¥ time specified in Service Cancession Agreement (CA) which is considered recoverable in the opinion of the management,

¢ The Company had invoked Arbitration proceedings against NHAI in respect of the dispute on applicability of carrying out periodic maintenance (overlay
¢ work) of the road project once in every five years in the Concession Agreement. On January 14, 2020, the Hon'ble Tribunal had pronounced the award
© wherein it had not agreed with the contention of the Company that overlay is to be carried out as and when the roughness index exceeds 2000 mm/km
© and had held that the Company has to carry out overlay irrespective of the condition of the road. In view of the finding, the Tribunal had directed the
« Company to commence second overlay work with effect from April 01, 2020 and complete by December 31, 2020 and also complete the third overlay

work by April 01, 2025, The NHAI had challenged the award before the Hon'ble High Court of Delhi with regard to extending the timeline to commence and
1 complete the second overlay work and third overlay work stating that such concession is not in accordance with Concession Agreement.

-

< The Arbitral Tribunal had further directed NHAI ta refund the amount of Rs.1,078.62 Lakhs which was wrongly deducted from the annuity along with
interest @12% p.a. from the date of deduction. The Arbitral Tribunal had also directed NHAI to pay Rs.30.00 Lakhs towards costs of litigation and the

entire amount of fee paid to the Arbitrators by the Company on behalf of NHAI NHAI had challenged the award with regard to directions for refund of
amount before the Hon'ble High Court of Delhi

A A A

-

Aggrieved by the findings of the Tribunal, to the limited issue of requirement of overlay upon every 5 years, the Company had filed an application under
Section 34 of the Arbitration and Conciliation Act, 1996 before Hon'ble High Court of Delhi by challenging the award to the extent of wrong interpretation
of clause 4.3.1 of schedule "I" to CA and rejection of claims for reimbursement of cost of overlay incurred by the company which under given circumstance
was not required pending disposal of appeal.

b W

-

The Honourable Delhi High Court vide its order dated April 06, 2022 had upheld the Company’s contentions and held that the overlay is to be carried out
as and when the roughness index exceeds 2000 mm/km and rejected the arbitration order which had held that the Company has to carry out overlay
irrespective of the condition of the road every five years. It has further upheld the Company's claim in respect of the cost incurred on the first major
maintenance and directed that the quantification of the claim to be done by the arbitrator appointed by it. The awards of tribunal on other matters
favourable to the Company was further upheld by the High Court.

NHAI has filed an appeal under section 37(1){c) of the Arbitration and Conciliation Act, 1996 against the order of Single Judge of Hon'ble Delhi High Court
{ before the Division bench of Hon'ble Delhi High Court and Court has directed on July 11, 2022 to maintain status quo of arbitration proceeding i.e. no stay
© on judgement and the matter has not yet attained finality. The Implication of the favourable order to the Company would have affected the carrying value
¢ of Service Concession Receivables by reduction of the outflows on overlay cost which would have resulted in significant modification gain to the Company
1 on reversal of those provisions. In view of NHAI's petition before the division bench of Hon'ble Delhi High Court against the order of single judge of Hon'ble
v Delhi High Court, the matter being sub-judice and pending finality and clarity, the Company has not affected the impact of the order in the financial asset
1 pertaining to the service concession agreement and has carried the provision for overlay cost in the books considering that there would be outflows with
« regard to the second and third major maintenance (overlay work) for arriving at the financial income and modification gains and has not reversed the
¢ provisions done for overlay works. The impact of the modification gain and reversal of provision for overlay cost if any, would be given effect on finality
¢ of NHAI's petition before the division bench of Hon'ble Delhi High Court.
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o 33‘ The Supreme Court (SC) had passed an order dated February 28, 2019 stating that for the purpose of contribution to be made under the Employees
( Provident Fund and Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1956 {'EPF Act'), the definition of basic wages includes all emoluments paid in cash to the employees in
¢ accordance with the terms of their contract of employment. In view of the same, the Company is liable to make further contribution towards Provident
¢ Fund ('PF') on the entire salary paid by it to its employees other than certain emoluments based on performance and variable. However, there is no clarity
¢ on effective date from when the liability is required to be paid by the Company. As a matter of caution, the Company has accounted and paid the PF
¢ liability in terms of the SC order on a prospective basis from the date of the SC order i.e., April 1, 2019 onwards. The Company further will account and pay

t the differential PF liability if any, on receiving further clarity on the subject from the Provident Fund Authorities and the impact if any which in view of the
{ Company is not expected to be material.

34( The Indian Parliament has approved the Code on Social Security, 2020 (‘Code’) which may impact the contribution by the Company towards Provident
« Fund and Gratuity. The effective date from which the Code and its provisions would be applicable is yet to be notified and the rules which would provide
Cthe details based on which financial impact can be determined are yet to be framed. The Company will complete its evaluation and will give appropriate
‘ impact, if any, in the financial results/statement following the Code becoming effective and the related rules being framed and notified.

35 ¢ The Management of the Company is of the opinion that no provision is required to be made in its books of account other than those already provided if

tany, with respect to any material foreseeable losses under the applicable laws, accounting standards or long term contracts. The Company does not have
vany derivative contracts.

36 ¢Non-consideration of Service Concession Agreement adjustment for the purpose of computing Income under section 11518 of the Income Tax Act, 1961:

“The Company had entered into concession agreement with National Highways Authority of India for rehabilitation and strengthening of existing 2-lane
5 portion from km 367.000 (Adloor Yellareddy) to km 447.000 (Kalkallu), covering 80.745 kms, and Improvement, operation and maintenance of kms
« 447.000 (Kalkallu) - 464.000 (Gundla Pochanpalli) covering 17.00 kms on NH-7 in the state of Andhra Pradesh, to 4 lanes under a concession on build,
Coperate and transfer (BOT).

¥ Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) was made applicable to the Company from financial year (FY) 2016-17. Under ind AS the company being an operator
€ under Service Concession Agreement (SCA) entitled to fixed annuity has classified Carriageways as financial assets. The company in terms of the same is
© apportioning proportionate amount of Annuity received by it every year to the financial assets so that at the end of concession period the assets becomes
¥ NIL and the balance towards financing income and service revenue towards operations. The company accordingly is not charging any depreciation on
¢ carriageways as was done under IGAAP, Accordingly the proportionate amount of annuity charges to carriageways is not shown as income / revenue in the
¢ Profit and loss account and similarly depreciation is not claimed as expenses as was done under IGAAP.

1 As per the provision of section 4 and 5 of the Income Tax Act, the above amount of Annuity which is not included in the profit and loss account is
4 chargeable to tax under normal provision of Income Tax Act. Similarly, the company is eligible to claim expenses of periodic maintenance (overlay) and
¢ income tax depreciation under the normal provision of Act.

¢ The Company while Computing Book Profit in terms of Section 115 JB of Income Tax Act 1961 has offered the above amount of annuity for tax and
{ corresponding depreciation on carriageways {original cost of project road) and expenses towards periodic maintenance has been claimed while computing
¢ book profit under section 115JB of the Act as against the book profit arrived at in the financials based on the financial model in terms of applicable Indian
v Accounting Standards.

© In this regard, the company had placed reliance on the rationale of introducing the MAT provisions (by way of section 80VVA of the Act), that actual
© income of the company without allowing deduction under any of the listed provision has to be taxable, The management is of the opinion that adjustment
« made towards 5CA results in recognition of notional financial income ignoring annuity income, actual depreciation and will lead to taxability of notional
« income and expenses which will defeat the purpose of introduction of the provision of MAT, As such while computing the book profit under 115)B of the
< Act, the company has removed the notional adjustment as required for SCA model under IND-AS scenario and offered actual profit under MAT computed
< inlines with the IGAAP which it hitherto was following prior to introduction of Ind-As in FY 2016-17 in its income tax returns. The Company has been
« advised that the said treatment has not been challenged by the income tax department in the assessment proceedings held during the year for the
< accounts of first year of adoption of Ind As and the returns have been accepted.

for the current tax expense

+ The Company for the purpo:

The provisions would be
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37 #The Company is engaged primarily in the business of Construction, Operation & Maintenance of Highways. As per the requirements of Ind AS 108, "
(Operating Segments”, the principal revenue Benerating activities of the Company is from Operation & Maintenance of Highways which is regularly
( reviewed by the National Highways Authority of India (NHAI). Accordingly, the management is of the view the Company has a single reportable segment
¢ and the requirements of reporting on operating segments and related disclosures as envisaged in Indian Accounting Standard 108 is not applicable to the
¢ Present activities of the Company.
< The Company's only segment being O
< the year.

38 (The Company has initiated the process of Balance confirmations and is yet to receive balance confirmations in respect of certain financial assets and
“financial liabilities. The Management however does not expect any material difference affecting the current year’s financial statements due to the same.

39¢ Employee Benefits
a) ¢ Defined Contribution Plans :
« The Company's Contribution to Provident and Pension Fund and Superannuation Fund charged to Statement of Profit and Loss are as follows ;

¢ _Rupees in Lakhs

P Particulars ¢ March 31, 2023 P March 31, 2022
< Contribution to provident fund and other funds 27.85¢ 25.46¢
« Contribution to Superannuation fund 14.55¢ 15.22¢
Total 42.40 40,687

¢ b) < The disclosures required as per the revised Ind AS 19 are as under:

1 The following tables set out the funded status of the gratuity plans and the amounts recognised in the Company's financial statements as at March
(31, 2023 and March 31, 2022:

Rupees in Lakhs 7

¢ Particulars March 31, 2023 ¢ March31, 20227
( i- Change in defined benefit obligation
¢ Defined benefit at the beginning 84.31¢ 7133 ¢
¢ Current Service Cost 3.81¢ 313 ¢
¢ Interest expenses 5.99¢ 4.85 ¢
¢ Acquisition Cost/(Credit) > 590 ¢
¢ Remeasurements - Actuarial loss / (gain) (8.38) ¢ (0.90) ¢
¢ Benefits paid g -t
 Defined benefit at the end 8573 ¢ 84.31¢
v il. Change in fair value of plan assets:
¢ Fair value of Plan Assets at the beginning 40.34¢ 33.23¢
¢ Expected return on plan assets 4.06 ¢ 2.59r¢
¢« Acquisition Adjustment St 9.62¢
© Actuarial gains/ (losses) 1.84, (5.14)
« Contributions by employer 33.76 ¢ 0.04
v Benefits paid L - r
¢ Fair value of plan assets at the end 80.00 ¢ 40.34
« lii. Amount Recognized in the Balance Sheet
¢ Present Value of Obligation as at year end 85.73 ¢ 8431 r
¢ Fair Value of plan assets at year end (80.00) ¢ (40.34)
' Net (asset) / liability recognised 5.73. 4397 7
(Civ. A t recognized in the Stat of Profit and Loss under employee benefit expenses.
¢ Current Service Cost 3.81v 3.13¢
¢ Past Service Cost =% =
« Service cost 381¢ 3:13'¢
¢ Net interest on net defined benefit liability / (asset) 1.93 ¢ 2267
{ Total expense 5.74 ¢ 539 r

© V. Recognised in other comprehensive income for the year
v Remeosurement of actuarial gains/(losses) arising from

(- changes in experience adjustments (7.42) ¢ 0.66 ¢
( - changes in financial assumption (0.96) ¢ (1.56) ¢
¢ - changes in demographic assumptions i o
¢ Actuarial (gains)/ losses (8.38) ¢ {0.90) ¢
« -return on plan assets excluding interest income (1.84) 5.14 ¢

© Actuarial (Gain) or Loss recognized in other comprehensive income (10.22) ¢ 4,24 «
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Rupees in Lakhs !

Particulars ¢

March 31, 2023

March 31, 2022

vi. Maturity profile of defined benefit obligation
¢ Within the next 12 months {next annual reporting period)
( 1-2 year
€2-3 year
€3-4 year
¢ 4-5 year
€5-10 year

vii. Quantitative sensitivity analysis for significant assumptions is as below:
¢ Increase [ decrease on present value of defined benefit obligation as at year end
¢ i) one percentage point increase in discount rate
(i) one percentage point decrease in discount rate
¢liii} one percentage point increase in salary escalation rate
liv) one percentage point decrease in salary escalation rate
“{v) one percentage point increase in employee turnaver rate
¢(vi) one percentage point decrease in employee turnover rate

{ Sensitivity Analysis Method

¢ Sensitivity for significant actuarial assumptions is computed by varying one actuarial assumption used for the v

¢ obligation by percentage, keeping all the other actuarial assumptions constant,

« Risk Faced by Company:

¢ The Gratuity scheme is a final salary Defined Benefit Plan that provides for a lump sum payment made on exit ei
Cdisability or voluntary withdrawal. The benefits are defined on the basis of final salary and the period of service and
¢ design means the risks commonly affecting the liabilities and the financial results are expected to be:

24.86 ¢
5.08 ¢
524 ¢
541«
6.05 ¢

64.84 ¢

{4.51) ¢
5.04 ¢
338 ¢
(3.09)¢
117 ¢
(1.27) ¢

2456 ¢
491 ¢
519 «
536¢
5.54¢

60.53 ¢

(4.80) 1
542«
3.63«

(3.40) ¢
121 ¢
(1.32) ¢

aluation of the defined benefit

ther by way of retirement, death,
paid as lump sum at exit, The Plan

<Interest rate risk : The defined benefit obligation calculated uses a discount rate based on government bonds. If bond yields fall, the defined benefit

¢ obligation will tend to increase

« Salary Inflation risk : Higher than expected increases in salary will increase the defined

* Demographic risk : This is the risk of variability of results due to unsystematic nature of decrements that inclu
¢ retirement. The effect of these decrements on the defined benefit obligation is not

benefit obligation

de mortality, withdrawal, disability and
straight forward and depends upon the combination of salary

« increase, discount rate and vesting criteria. It is important not to overstate withdrawals because in the financial analysis the retirement benefit of a

(short career employee typically costs less per year as compared to a long service employee.

< viii, The major category of plan assets as a Ppercentage of the fair value of total Plan assets are as follows:

< Investment with Insurer managed funds - conventional products

(The Company contributes all ascertained liabilities towards gratuity to the Life Insurance Corporation of India (LI

{31, 2022, the plan assets have besn invested in insurer managed funds.

«_March 31, 2023

« March 31, 2022

100%,

100%«

C). As of March 31, 2023 and March

¢ ix. The weighted average assumptions used to determine net periodic benefit cost for the year ended March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022 are set out

¢ below:

« Discount rate (p.a.)

{ Salary escalation Rate
¢ Attrition rate

« Retirement age

¢ Mortality Table

{ The estimates of future salary increases considered in the actuarial valuation take into account inflation, seniority,

« factors such as supply and demand in the employment market,

¢ The Company expects to contribute Rs.33.76 Lakhs to the gratuity fund during FY 2023-24.

€) Leave Encashment

v_March31,2023 1 March 31, 2022

7.30% ¢
6.00% «
5.00% *
60 years®

{modified) ULT

7.10% «
6.00% ¢
5.00% ¢
60 years «

Indian Assured Lives Indian Assured Lives
Mortality (2006-08) ¢ Mortality (2006-08) ¢

(modified) ULT

promotion and other relevant

s Liability towards Leave Encashment based on Actuarial valuation amounts to Rs. 96.81 Lakhs as at March 31, 2023 [March 31, 2022: Rs. 124.16

{ Lakhs],
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v 40
¥ a) € Names of the related
“ Relationship
¢ Holding Company
¢ Enterprises having control over the Company

5
< Fellow Subsidiary .

L]

A1

€ Other entities - Enterprise where Key Management
* Personnel and their relatives exercise significant
¢ influence

« Key Management Personnel

« Chief Financial Officer 1

* Company Secretary
© Manager

(List of Related Parties with whom transactions have taken place during the year:

parties and description of relationship

Name of the related parties

GMR Highways Limited (GHWL)

GMR Enterprises Private Limited [GEPL],

(formerly known as GMR Holdings Private Limited)
GMR Infrastructure Limited [GIL] till December 31,
GMR Power and Urban Infra Limited [GPUIL] w.e.f.
GMR Infrastructure Limited [GIL] w.e.f January 01,
GMR Energy Ltd (GEL)

GMR Ambala Chandigarh Expressways Private Limited (GACEPL)

GMR Tambaram Tindivanam Fxnresswaur UpsitaddSaia, .::L) [Refer note (iii)]

¥ GMR Tuni Anakapalli Expressways Limited (GTAEL) [Refer note {iii)]
f GMR Hyderabad Vijayawada Expressways Private Ltd (GHVEPL)
« GMR Hyderabad International Airports Ltd (GHIAL)
< Raxa Security Services Limited (RSSL)
¢ Dhruvi Securities Private Limited ( DSPL)
< Kakinada SEZ Limited [KSL]
* GMR SEZ & Port Holdings Limited [GSPHL]
\ GVIRTAennai Odter Ring Road Private Limited [GCORR]
{ Delhi International Airports Limited [DIAL]
¥ GMR Warora Energy Limited [GWEL]
¢ GMR Varalakshmi Foundation ( GVF)
% GMR Projects Private Limited, (GPPL)

Mrs. Ramadevi Bommidala, Whole time director (from August 01, 2022)
Mrs. Ragini Kiran Grandhi, Director (Whole time director till April 30, 2022)
Mr. O Bangaru Raju, President (from May 1, 2019)

Mr. Arun Kumar Sharma, Director (from April 11, 2014)

Mr. Mohan Rao M, Independent Director (Director from October 16, 2015)
Mr. K.A.Somayajulu, Independent Director (till September 07, 2022)

Mr. Bajrang Lal Gupta, Independent Director {from September 1, 2016)

2o Vo Ml R S L

Mr. Amit Kumar, CFO

1 Mr. Paramjeet Singh, Company Secretary

¢ Mr. Paranthaman Adimoolam {Manager, w.e.f, February 23, 2019)

bl Details of the transactions with related parties are as follows :

2021 [refer note (i) below]
lanuary 01, 2022 [refer note (i) below]
2022 [refer note (ii) below]

"Rupees in Lakhs

c Particulars Relatinnshipr March 31, 2023 = March 31, 2022(
A, Items relating to statement of profit and loss
a. ¢ Interest Income on Inter Corporate Deposit/Unsecured Loan given
¢ GHWL ( Holding Company 1,655.22 ¢ 1,454.50 «
1 GPUIL { Enterprises having control over the Company 484.06 ¢ 346.41¢
¢ GIL ¢« Enterprises having control over the Company 930.86 ¢ 930.86¢
¢ DSPL ¢ Fellow Subsidiary 25.19¢ 23.46¢
¢ KSL < Fellow Subsidiary - -
{ GSPHL © Fellow Subsidiary 301.20 ¢ 235.79 ¢
( GTTEL [refer foot note (iii)] { Fellow Subsidiary 40.95¢ 110.24 ¢
¥ GTAEL [refer foot note (iii)] ¢ Fellow Subsidiary 14.44 ¢ 37.60 ¢
¥ GACEPL ¢ Fellow Subsidiary 29.46 7 27.21¢
b.\ Moaodification Loss /(reversal) on Loan given to related parties
¢ GHWL ¢ Holding Company 820.10¢ 605.60 ¢
* GPUIL ¢ Enterprises having control over the Company 523,55¢ 113.36 «
v GIL ¢ Enterprises having control over the Company - < 267.33 «
¢ DSPL < Fellow Subsidiary 15.75¢ 11.63 ¢
¢ KSL < Fellow Subsidiary = (333.97) ¢
{ GSPHL < Fellow Subsidiary 15.39¢ (32.98) ¢
« GTTEL [refer foot note (iii)] € Fellow Subsidiary - - 4277 ¢
 GTAEL [refer foot note (jii)] \ Fellow Subsidiary - g 11.99 ¢
© GACEPL < Fellow Subsidiary 8.42¢ 3.61¢
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rRuees in Lakhs ;
Particulars Relationshipr March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
L1 < 'd

nterest on Liability portion of Preference Shares

Enterprises having control over the Company ¥ 299, 69.34 4

Enterprises having control over the Companyr 20143 ¢

\ Share of Corporate Common expense
‘GPUIL

Enterprises having control over the Company ( : 7.56
(GIL

Enterprises having contral over the Company ¢ 3824 ¢

¢ Monthly Maintenance of Highways and toll construction

<GHWL Holding Company ¢ 467.51 ¢ 461.52 ¢

« Change of scope work reimbursed
«GHWL Holding Company « 2,694.70 ¢ 1,192.16 ¢

¢ Periodic maintenance of Highways expenses recognised
¢ GHWL Holding Company ¢ 1,007.16¢ 1,264.06 «
¢ Periodic maintenance of Highways not recognised as expenses as per Ind AS 115 ¢
« GHWL Holding Company Y 1,872.41¢ 1,562.84 v
- ( Charges for Security & Toll management services
< RSSL Fellow Subsidiary . 113.26¢ 108.95 ¢
¢ Unwinding Interest on Periodic Maintenance / (reversal)
¢ GHWL Holding Company . 496,23 ¢ 291.56 ¢
¢ Corporate Sacial Responsibility Expenses
( GVF Other Entities + 26.91 ¢ 1547 ¢
. ¢ Trademark & Logo fees g
¢ GEPL Enterprises having control over the Company ¢ 20.45 21,19 ¥
( Electricity & Majg
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{ Rupees in Lakhs

Particulars ; Relationship

March 31, 2023 \ [ March 31, 2022

d. < Unsecured Loan / inter corporate deposits given
(GPUIL/{GJL]
< Opening balance
< Add: Loan given during the year
€ Less: Recovered during the year
« Closing Balance

Enterprises having control over the Company
4

¢ GHWL Halding Ccmpanyr
¢ Opening balance
¢ Add: Loan given during the year
¢ Add: Transferred from GTAEL & GTTEL on account of merger [refer note (jii)] ,
< Less: Recovered during the year
¢ Closing Balance

¢ DSPL Fellow Subsidiary
« Opening balance
¢ Less: Recovered during the year
¢ Closing Balance

-

GTTEL Fellow Subsidiary ¢
¢ Opening balance

¢ Less: Transferred to GHWL on account of merger [refer note (jii)]

¢ Closing Balance

-

GTAEL Fellow Subsidiary
: r
¢ Opening balance
¢ Less: Transferred to GHWL on account of merger [refer note (jii)]
; Closing Balance

« KSL Fellow Subsidiary ©
< Opening balance
« Less: Recovered during the year
. Less: Provision / (reversal) of loan modification loss
( Closing Balance

¢ GSPHL Fellow Subsidiary
< Opening balance b
< Add: Conversion of Accrued Interest receivable into principal
< Closing Balance

s GACEPL Fellow Subsidiary
{ Opening balance
* Less: Recovered during the year
© Closing Balance

e. ¢ Advance to supplier of goods / services

¥ GHWL Holding Company
¢ Opening balance s
© Less: Utilised during the year
‘ Closing Balance

f. ~Conversion of Accrued interest receivable into Loan

T GSPHL Fellow Subsidiary ¢
g ¢ Interest receivable on loan given (net of modification loss)

¢ GPUIL Enterprises having control over the Company .
( GIL Enterprises having control over the Company
¢ GHWL Holding Company s

< DSPL Fellow Subsidiary

( KSL Fellow Subsidiary

« GSPHL Fellow Subsidiary -

¢ GTTEL Fellow Subsidiary ,

(GTAEL Fellow Subsidiary ,

« GACEPL Fellow Subsidiary «

12,150.56 ¢ 8301.12 1
(0.01)C 3,849.44 (
0.01¢ -
12,150.56 12,150.56 ¢
10,820.46 ¢ 10,820.46 ¢
150.00 ¢ &
1,180.92 ¢ -
(341.46) ¢ -
11,809.92 ¢ 10,820.46 ¢
177.00 ¢ 177.00¢
£ .
177.00¢ 177.00 ¢
861.00 ¢ 861.00¢
{861.00)¢ -
i 861.00¢
319.92 319.927
(319.92)¢ -
B 319.92 ¢
- 3,515.48 ¢
- (3,849.45) ¢
- 333.97 ¢
2,510.00 ¢ 1,967.07 ¢
_— 54293 ¢
2,510.00 ¢ 2,510.00¢
266.53 266.53 ¢
1 &
266,53 1 266.53 %
1,396.59 ¢ 1,427.56Y
(84.64) (30.97) ¢
1,311.95¢ 1,396.59
. 542,93,
3,286.26 ¥ 2,492.11 ¢
3,614.57 ¢ 3,297.19v¢
69.32 61.31¢
305.36 ¢ 4.72¢
365.44 ¢ 249,57,
113.85 ¢ 76.59,
46.35 27.44¢
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Rupees in Lakhs

Particulars Relationship March 31, 2023 . March 31, 2022,
h. (Trade and other payables
GPUIL ¢ Enterprises having control over the Company 30.12¢ 10.94
¢ GIL < Fellow Subsidiary - ¢ 12215 ¢
§ GEPL  Enterprises having control over the Company 20.45¢ 21,00 <
¢ GHWL « Holding Company 1,728.89 < 1,517.42¢
¥ DIAL ¢ Fellow Subsidiary 8.87¢ -
¢ RSSL ¢ Fellow Subsidiary 117.93¢ 85.30
(GHIAL « Fellow Subsidiary - ¢ =
( Mr. Bajrang Lal Gupta ¢ Independent Director 1.53¢ -
CMr. K.A, Somayajulu « Independent Director 0.89¢ z
-« Right of use assets:
C DIAL © Fellow Subsidiary - 116.07 ¢
¢ Lease liability payable:
« DIAL ( Fellow Subsidiary 275.23¢ 437.73 ¢
{Provision for periodic maintenance
CGHwL ¢ Holding Company
¢ Opening balance 10,804.62 ¢ 10,214.28 ¢
¢ Add: Provision made during the year 2,368.64 ¢ 1,854.40 ¢
¢ Less: Provision utilised during the year (1,007.15)¢ (1,264.08) «
(" Less: Reversal of excess provision during the year 11 4545 35)¢ -
“Lladang saance 10,720.76 ¢ 10,804.62 ¢
I © Receivable/(payable) towards other reimbursement
¢ GHVEPL < Fellow Subsidiary - -
CGWEL < Fellow Subsidiary . 001 ¢
GACEPL { Fellow Subsidiary - -
m. ; Other commitments
¢ GPUIL/GIL [Refer note no.31 above] < Enterprises having control over the Company - 3,147.85 ¢
n. { Capital commitments
© DIAL [Refer note no.31 above] * Fellow Subsidiary - 53.93 ¢
Notes:

¢

i. ¢ Related Party Transactions given above are as identified by the Management.

ii. (Transactions and balances with GMR Infrastructure Limited [GIL] is transferred in the name of GMR Power and Urban Infra Limited [GPUIL] w.e.f.
tJanuary 01, 2022 in terms of the Composite Scheme of Arrangements approved by the National Company Law Tribunal (NCLT) vide its Order dated
¢December 22, 2021,

iil. {Transactions and balances with GMR Tambaram Tindivanam Expressways Limited (GTTEL) and GMR Tuni Anakapalli Expressways Limited (GTAEL)
Cwere transferred in the name of GMR Highways Limited (GHWL) w.e.f August 11, 2022 as per the NCLT, Mumbai Bench-1v, CP{CAA)/207/MB/2021 in
CCA(CAR)/11/(MB)/2021 Merger order dated August 03, 2022,

iv. < Commitments with related parties: As at year ended March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022, there is no commitment outstanding with any of the
( related parties.

V. ¢Termsand conditions of transactions with related parties

¢ The transaction from related parties are made on terms equivalent to those that prevail in arm’s length transactions as approved by the Audit
€ Committee. Outstanding balances at the year-end are unsecured and settlements occurs in cash. There have been no guarantees provided or

© GMR Power and Urban Infra Limited [GPUIL]. For the year ended March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022, the Company has assessed the credit risk of
§ dues receivable from related parties in respect of loans outstanding and the management is of the view that there are no impairment/credit loss
¢ allowance to be considered other than those already provided under modification loss with regard to loss allowance and delay in repayment of
¢ interest. This assessment is undertaken each financial year through examining the financial position of the related party and the market in which the
¢ related party operates.

i, ¢ For terms and condition related to Preference Share please refer Note no14.

(¢ Compensation of key management personnel of the company ~_Rupees in Lakhs
 Particulars ¢ March31,2023 ( March 31, 2022
< a. Short-term employee benefits 203.83 ¢ 299.52¢
('b. Post-employment benefits (provident fund and superannuation fund) 15.80 ¢ 2212 r
¢ c. Any other payment/benefit given to KMPs 242 ¢ 0.92¢

¢ Total . 22205 32256 ¢
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< d. Transaction with Key Management Personnel

Rup in Lakhs -

(Parﬁl:ulars Remuneration ¢ Outstanding i
Short-term Post employment  Other long-term  Termination Sitting Fee Others - loans/advances
employee benefits employee ' benefits « v Reimbursements receivables ¢

benefits < benefits e

Mr. Bajrang Lal - = ~ 153 ¢ - =
Gupta - - - (0.35) ¢ - 5
Mr. KA - - - 0.89 ¢ - &
Somayajulu ¢ - - - {0.35) ¢ ~ -
Mr. Mohan ¢ - - % 0.71¢ - =
Rao * « = = = & 3 =
Mrs. Ramadevi . 54.08 i # & - =
Bommidala ¢ - - 5 < . 4
Mrs. Ragini Kiran ¢ 6.05 = = = = ™
Grandhi ¢ (82.33)_ (5.76) ¢ - - - - -
Mr. O Bangaru Rajus 180.44r E - = = =
(199.64) ¢ {15.00) ¢ - - - 0.22) ¢ -
Mr. Paranthaman ( 17.34 ¢ 145 ¢ - - = = k
Adimoolam ¢ (17.55) _ (1.36) ¢ - 2 o : :

« Previous year are in brackets
{ *-w.ef August 01, 2022
¢ Note:

¢ Key Managerial Personne| are entitled to post-employment benefits and other long term employee benefits recognised as per Ind AS 19 - ‘Employee

1 Benefits’ in the financial statements, As these employee benefits are lump sum amounts provided on the basis of actuarial valuation, the same is not

¢ Included above.

‘a1 Ratio Analysis

51  Ratios Numerator Denominator March 31, March 31, 2022 Variance Remarks
o i 2023 LS v v
< L1
a) CurrentRatio Current Asset Current liabilities 3.37 318 ¢ ¥ 6% NA‘,
< c X
b) Debt-Equity Debt including lease liabilities and ~ Total Equity 0.79 ¢ 110 ¢ -28% On account of higher
Ratio = interest accrued thereon 5 profit for the year
5 other equity
increased and lower
debt outstanding
thereof
¢}  Debt Service Earnings before Tax + Depreciation + Debt ¢ 115« 0.61 ¢ 88% On account of
Coverage Interest on secured debts + interest redemptions and increase in Profit and
Ratio on lease liability interest on debt decrease  in  the
: and payment of redemption of NCD
lease liabilities as per schedules
and interest
thereon
d) Returnon Profit after tax Average 23.90% 10.59% © 126% Reversal of excess
Equity Ratio Shareholders provision for overlay
equity (less DRR) work led to increse in
Modification  gain,
profit and return on
equity
e} Inventorys Revenue from operations Average 210.70 ¢ 204.04 ¢ 2 3% NA
turnover ratio < Inventories
f)  Trade/SCA ¢ Revenue from operations Average of 0.46 « 0.42 ¢ « 9% NA
Receivables ¢ service T

turnover ratio

concession assets
(SCA) receivables
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5| Ratios Numerator Denominator March31, March 31, 2022 Variance Remarks
< L 1
X 2023 v c t’
gl Trade Operating expenses, Employee Average Trade 1.58 1.22 30% Increase in payable
¢ payables benefits expense, Other expenses payable ¥ o

turnover ratio other than fair valye changes (net of
provisions movement) ¢

h)  Net capital
Y turnover ratio

Total Income ¢ Working Capital 34.61% 25.51%
minus current

liabilities)

i} Net profit ratio Net profit after Total Income P 30.74% 15.69%

2 tax ¢ v

i) Returnon
. Capital
employed

Earning before Interest and taxes Tangible net 13.61% 8.14%
& worth + Total . X \

Debt + Deferred

Tax liabilities

Interest Incomes Investment 10.81% 10.82%

k) ¢ Returnon
investment
fund, Interest <
bearable
Unsecured Loan,
deposit with
banks)

(current assets € v

(including Mutual < <

¥ on account of major
maintenance  works
and change of scope
works being carried
out

36% Due to huge increase

< In modification gain

total income and net '
capital turnover ratio
is increased

96% Due to higher Other
income and lower -
finance cost, net
profit ratio increased

67% Increase on account
of reversal of excess ;

provision towards
major maintenance
0% NA

r

42 Corporate Social Responsibility
(Lompany is covered under section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the details thereof is given below

« Rupees in Lakhs

¢ Particulars March 31, 2023 c March 31, 2022'
¢ 3  Amount required to be spent by the company for the year 2691¢ 1547 ¢
< bl Amount of expenditure incurred 26.91 ¢ 15.47 ¢
¢ ¢) Shortfall at the end of the year Nil Nil
< d) Total of previous year shortfall Nil Nil
. € Reason for shortfall NA ¢ NA ¢
¢ f)  Nature of CSR activities Education & - Education &
Community - Community :
Development, Development
¢ 8] Name of the trust GMR Varalakshmic  GMR Varalakshmi
Foundation ¢ Foundatior:
< h)  Whether provision is made in relation to liability incurred NA ¢ NA

¢ The Company's social responsibility initiatives are implemented through GMR Varalakshmi Foundation (GMRVF),
¢ activities cover awareness about Preventive Health Care & Sanitation and Promoting Education including Vocation
« amount through GMRVF Rs. 26.91 Lakhs (March 31, 2022 : Rs.15.47 Lakhs). Amount spent directly by the Company is

43 Other statutory information

the CSR arm of the GMR Group. The
al Skills. The Company has spent CSR
Rs.Nil (March 31, 2022 : Rs.Nil).

¢« 1)  There are no balance outstanding on account of any transaction with companies struck off under Section 248 of the Companies Act, 2013 or Section

« 560 of Companies Act, 1956.

%ii) <The Company does not have any such transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been

“during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961.

surrendered or disclosed as income

iii) € The Company do not have any capital-work-in progress or intangible assets under development, whose completion is overdue or has exceeded its

[ cost compared to its original plan.

iv) ¢ The Company have not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (intermediaries) with the

s understanding that the intermediary shall:

¢ (a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (Ultimate

T Beneficiaries) or
© (b) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.
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v} (The Company has not received any fund from any person
¢ recorded in writing or otherwise) that the company shall:
€(a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other
( Beneficiaries) or

(s} or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the understanding (whether

persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate

<(b) provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

vi) (The Company has neither transacted in Crypto or Virtual

Currency during the year nor held any Crypto or Virtual Currency as at the Balance Sheet
(date,

vii) €The Company has not declared wilful defaulter by any bank of financial institution of other lender.

viii) $The Company do not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the Company for holding any Benami
<property.
44 Salient aspects of Service Concession Arrangement
« National Highways Authority of India (NHAI) has granted the exclusive right and authority during the concession period for designing, engineering,
< financing, procurement, construction, completion, operation and maintenance of the Project Highway. It shall include Improvement, Operation and
{ Maintenance of NH-7 in the state of Andhra Pradesh.
« The Concession period is 20 year commencing from the commencement date J1.e. September 27, 2006
* NHAI has further granted the exclusive right and authority during the concession peried in accordance with terms and condition of the agreement to:
(- todevelop, design, engineer, finance, procure, tonstruct, operate and maintain the Project Highway during the Concession Period.
1 - upon Completion of the Project Highway and during the Operation Period to manage, operate & maintain the Project Highway and regulate the use
¢ thereof by third parties.
« - to allow NHAI to levy, demand, collect and appropriate the Fees from vehicles and persons liable to payment of Fees for using the Project Highway or
¢ any part thereof.
« - perform and fulfil all of the obligations under this agreement.
¢ - bear and pay all expenses, costs and charges incurred in the fulfilment of all the obligations under this Agreement,
© - not assign or create any lien or Encumbrance on the Concession hereby granted on the whole or any part of the Project Highway nor transfer, lease
¢ or part possession therewith save and except as expressly permitted by this Agreement or the Substitution Agreement.
¢ Annuity
¢ Subject to the provisions of the Concession Agreement and in consideration of the Company accepting the Concession and undertaking to perform and
« discharge its obligations in accordance with the terms, conditions and covenants set forth in this agreement, NHAI agrees and undertake to pay to the
{ Concessionaire, on each Annuity Payment Date, the sum of Rs.5,418 Lakhs.

< The Company should nat levy, demand or collect from or in respect of any vehicle or Person, for the use of Praject Facilities, any sum whatsoever in the
¢« nature of a toll or fee.

« The Company should not permit or allow any advertisement/hoarding or other commercial activity and should not be entitled to charge, collect or receive
¥ any sums on account of any such activity. The Company agrees that unless otherwise provided in this Agreement, the project revenue shall consist of
¢ Annuity only.

¥ Concession Fee

{ In consideration of the grant of Concession under this Agreement, the Concession fee payable by the Company to the NHAI is Rs. 1 per year during the
© terms of the concession agreement.

% Operation and Maintenance
< The Company shall operate and maintain the Project Highway by itself or through Operations and Maintenance (O&M) Contractor and if required, modify,
¢ repair or otherwise make improvement to the Project Highway to comply with Specifications and Standards, and other requirements set forth in this

¢ Agreement, Good Industry Practice, Applicable laws and Applicable Permits and manufacturer's guidelines and instructions with respect to toll systems
¢ and more specifically:

¢ . permitting safe, smooth and uninterrupted flow of traffic during normal operating conditions.

¢ li. to allow NHAI to levy, demand, collect and appropriate the Fees from vehicles and persons liable to payment of Fees for using the Project Highway or
any part thereof as per Article Vil of the Concession Agreement

© iii. minimizing disruption to traffic in the event of accidents or other incidents affecting the safety and use of the Project Highway by providing a rapid
and effective response and maintaining liaison procedures with emergency services,

¢ iv. undertaking routine maintenance including prompt repairs of potholes, cracks, Concrete joints, drains, line marking, lighting and signage.
¢ V- undertaking periodic maintenance such as resurfacing of pavements, repairs to structures and hardware and other equipment.
¢ Vi. carrying out periodic preventive maintenance to Project Highway.
© vii. preventing with the assistance of concerned law enforcement agencies unauthorised entry to and exit from the Project Highway.
© viii. preventing with the assistance of the concerned law enforcement agencies encroachments on the Project Highway including site and preserve the
right of way of the Project Highway.

« ix. maintaining a public relations unit to interface with and attend to suggestions from users of the Project Highway, the media, Government Agencies,
and other external agencies.

A
x

- adherence to the safety standards.

s
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< Monitoring and Supervision during Operation

¢ The Company is required to undertake periodic ins
¢ compliance or otherwise with the Maintenance Man
¢ shall submit report of such inspection ("

pection of the Project Highway to determine the condition of the Project Highway including its
ual, the Maintenance Programme, Specifications and Standards and the maintenance required and
Maintenance Report”) to NHAI and the Independent Consultant,

45 rFigures of the previous year wherever necessary, have been regrouped and rearranged to conform with those of the current year,

« As per our report of even date attached
{ For Chaturvedi & Shah LLP < "ror arid ori behalf of the Board of Directors of
«Lhartered Accountants ¢ GMR Pochanpalli Expressways Limited
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